
Bryant City Council

Boswell Municipal Complex - City Hall Court Room

210 SW 3rd Street

YouTube: https://www.youtube.com/c/bryantarkansas

Date: October 28, 2025 - Time: 6:30 PM

Invocation

Pledge of Allegiance

Call to Order

Approval of Minutes

1. September 30, 2025 Regular Meeting - Unapproved minutes
• Council Meeting Minutes September 30 2025.docx.pdf

Presentations and Announcements

2. Shelter Appreciation Week - Presented by Tricia Power, Director

3. Greater Bryant Chamber of Commerce Report - Presented by President & CEO, Shane Knight

4. Introduction of New Banking Partner - Arvest Bank

Public Comments

Old Business

Council

5. Ordinance 2025-13 - An ordinance restricting right-of-way canvassers and solicitors to certain Bryant

streets and roadways, located within the City of Bryant, because canvassers and solicitors pose a danger to

themselves and the public at large by intervening with the safe and normal flow of traffic; and for other

purposes.

Requested by Councilmember Lisa Meyer. Second reading

• Ordinance Restricting Solicitors.docx (2).pdf

New Business

Finance

6. Finance Report - Month ending September 30, 2025

Approval and acceptance of the finance report for the month ending September 30, 2025.

https://www.youtube.com/c/bryantarkansas
https://www.cityofbryant.com/grab/agendas/uploads/agenda_519/council_meeting_minutes_september_30_2025-docx.pdf
https://www.cityofbryant.com/grab/agendas/uploads/agenda_519/ordinance_restricting_solicitors-docx_-2-.pdf


• Sept2025_FinanceReport.pdf

7. Resolution 2025-42 - A resolution providing for the adoption of an amended budget for the City of Bryant

for the twelve-month period beginning January 1, 2025 and ending December 31, 2025.
• 10.23.25 Budget Adjustments for Oct City Council.pdf

8. Public Hearing for Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds

9. Ordinance 2025-14 - An ordinance authorizing the construction of betterments and improvements to the

sewer facilities of the City of Bryant, Arkansas; authorizing the issuance of a water and sewer revenue bond

for the purpose of financing all or a portion of the cost of construction; providing for the payment of the

principal of and interest on the bond; and prescribing other matters thereto.
• Ordinance 2025-14.docx.pdf

10. Resolution 2025-43 - A resolution updating the fleet vehicles for the Bryant Police Department, Bryant,

AR.
• Enterprise Resolution.pdf

Animal Control

11. Ordinance 2025-15 - An ordinance repealing Ordinance 2015-45; setting the fee schedule for the

department of Animal Control in the City of Bryant.
• ordinance_2025-15.pdf

City Attorney

12. Public Hearing for Water and Sewer Rates

13. Ordinance 2025-11 - An ordinance fixing rates for services rendered by the water facilities of the water

and sewer system of the City of Bryant, Arkansas; and prescribing other matters thereto.

Second reading

• ordinance_2025-11_water_rates.pdf

14. Ordinance 2025-12 - An ordinance fixing rates for services rendered by the sewer facilities of the water

and sewer system of the City of Bryant, Arkansas; and prescribing other matters thereto.

Second reading

• ordinance_2025-12_wastewater_rates.pdf

15. Resolution 2025-44 - A resolution adopting an artificial intelligence policy for the City of Bryant in

compliance with act 848 of 2025; and for other purposes.
• resolution_2025-44_ai_policy.pdf

Parks and Recreation

16. Request to Submit Letter of Intent to Bid on RFP to Provide Aging Services

Currently CareLink is managing daily operations for the Bryant Senior Adult Center and has issued an RFP to contract those

services out. The Parks Department is requesting support to submit a letter of intent to bid on these services.

• parks_seniorcenterrfp.pdf

Planning & Development

17. Sidewalk Waiver - Therapeds - 2208 N Reynolds Road

A waiver is requested by Hope Consulting and Madeline Dunlap for the requirement to build a sidewalk along the Dell Drive

street frontage

• sidewalk_waiver_request_-_therapeds.pdf

https://www.cityofbryant.com/grab/agendas/uploads/agenda_519/sept2025_financereport.pdf
https://www.cityofbryant.com/grab/agendas/uploads/agenda_519/10-23-25_budget_adjustments_for_oct_city_council.pdf
https://www.cityofbryant.com/grab/agendas/uploads/agenda_519/ordinance_2025-14-docx.pdf
https://www.cityofbryant.com/grab/agendas/uploads/agenda_519/enterprise_resolution.pdf
https://www.cityofbryant.com/grab/agendas/uploads/agenda_519/ordinance_2025-15.pdf
https://www.cityofbryant.com/grab/agendas/uploads/agenda_519/ordinance_2025-11_water_rates.pdf
https://www.cityofbryant.com/grab/agendas/uploads/agenda_519/ordinance_2025-12_wastewater_rates.pdf
https://www.cityofbryant.com/grab/agendas/uploads/agenda_519/resolution_2025-44_ai_policy.pdf
https://www.cityofbryant.com/grab/agendas/uploads/agenda_519/parks_seniorcenterrfp.pdf
https://www.cityofbryant.com/grab/agendas/uploads/agenda_519/sidewalk_waiver_request_-_therapeds.pdf


Police Department

18. AlliConnect Contract - AlliConnect is a software platform for first responder mental health that the PD has

been utilizing for the past year in conjunction with the Officer Wellness Unit.

Approval for the Mayor to enter into a five-year contract with AlliConnect.

• alliconnect_contract (1).pdf

Council Comments

Mayor Comments

Adjournments

https://www.cityofbryant.com/grab/agendas/uploads/agenda_519/alliconnect_contract_-1-.pdf


Bryant City Council Meeting Minutes 
September 30, 2025 -  6:30 PM 

Boswell Municipal Complex - City Hall Court Room    210 SW 3rd Street   Bryant, Arkansas 
YouTube: https://www.youtube.com/c/bryantarkansas 

 

UNAPPROVED MINUTES 

 
A prayer was led by Council Member Meyer and the Pledge of Allegiance was led by Mayor Treat. 
 
Call to Order- Mayor Treat at 6:34 pm. 

Roll Call –  
Present: Walter Burgess, Butch Higginbotham, Jon Martin, Lisa Meyer, Jack Moseley, Jordan 
O’Roark. Rob Roedel and Wade Permenter. 
Quorum Present.   
City Attorney Ashley Clancy and City Clerk Mark Smith were also present.   
 
 
Approval of Minutes   
 

1. Approval of August 19, 2025 Council Meeting Minutes         
Motion to approve - Council Member Meyer, second by Council Member Permenter.  [YT 4:40] 
Voice Vote.  Motion Passed.  

 
Presentations and Announcements  
 

2. Fire Chief Futch reported that the city has been awarded a Fire Fighter Grant in the         [YT 5:40] 
amount of $363,000 for replacement Air Packs. 

 
Public Comments 

Chamber CEO Shane Knight gave a quarterly update on the Bryant Chamber of Commerce.     [YT 6:05] 

 
Council Member Meyer made a Motion to Suspend the Rules and add an item to the Agenda    [YT 14:10] 
to enter Executive Session to discuss personnel matters, Second by Council Member Roedel. 
Voice Vote.  Motion Passed. 
 
Executive Session 6:44 PM to 7:17 PM.   
There was no report. 
 

New Business  

Finance – Presented by Joy Black, Director 

3. Finance Report - Month ending July 31, 2025                [YT 48:00] 
Approval and acceptance of the finance report for the month ending August 30, 2025. 
Motion to accept - Council Member O’Roark, Second by Council Member Higginbotham. 
Voice Vote.  Motion Passed. 
 

            September 30, 2025     Council Minutes     1 | Page 
 

https://www.youtube.com/c/bryantarkansas


4. Resolution 2025-36 - A resolution providing for the adoption of an amended budget       [YT 51:00] 
for the City of Bryant for the twelve month period beginning January 1, 2025 and ending 
December 31, 2025. 
Motion to adopt - Council Member O’Roark, Second by Council Member Permenter.        
Voice Vote.  Motion Passed. 
 

5. Resolution 2025-37 - A resolution authorizing the Mayor of the City of Bryant,        [YT 52:45] 
Arkansas to enter into a contract with Forvis Mazars for auditing and tax  
services; and for other purposes. 
Motion to accept - Council Moseley, Second by Council Member Burgess. 
Voice Vote.  Motion Passed. 
 

Animal Control- Director Tricia Power 

 
6. Resolution 2025-38 - A resolution authorizing the City of Bryant to sell and/or        [YT 53:45] 

dispose of surplus equipment owned by the City of Bryant.  
Two old trucks that have been replaced and are now surplus. 
Motion to suspend the rules and read 1st reading by title only - Council Member Meyer,  
second by Council Member O’Roark. 
Voice Vote.  Motion passed. 
 

City Attorney- Ashley Clancy 

7. Motion by Council Member Martin to Suspend the Rules and read 1st reading by Title     [YT 55:00] 
Only.  Second by Council Member Meyer. 
Voice Vote.  Motion Passed. 
Title read by the Mayor. 
Ordinance 2025-11 - An ordinance fixing rates for services rendered by the water 
facilities of the water and sewer system of the City of Bryant, Arkansas; and  
prescribing other matters relating thereto. 
Bob Joiner estimated that 20-25% of water users are using the minimum of 2000 gallons a 
month or less.  The average user in Bryant is using 4500 gallons or less which he considers 
efficient and far less than the national average of 9-10,000 gallons. 

 

8. Motion by Council Member Moseley to Suspend the Rules and read 1st reading by       [YT 1:00:45] 
Title Only.  Second by Council Member Meyer. 
Voice Vote.  Motion Passed. 
Title read by the Mayor. 
Ordinance 2025-12 - An ordinance fixing rates for services rendered by the sewer 
facilities of the water and sewer system of the City of Bryant, Arkansas; and  
prescribing other matters relating thereto.  
 

City Government- Mayor Treat 
 

9. Municipal Funding Committee Recommendation             [YT 1:02:00] 
Motion to Accept Municipal Funding Committee’s information- Council Member Roedel, 
Second by Council Member O’Roark. 
Voice Vote. 

            September 30, 2025     Council Minutes     2 | Page 
 



Council 

10. Ordinance 2025-13 - An ordinance restricting right-of-way canvassers and            [YT 1:02:45] 
solicitors to certain Bryant streets and roadways, located within the City of Bryant, 
because canvassers and solicitors pose a danger to themselves and the public at large 
by intervening with the safe and normal flow of traffic; and for other purposes. 
Requested by Council Member Meyer who considers solicitors on street corners and 
intersections to be a public safety issue because it distracts the driver.  Council Member 
Roedel added that he would prefer the ordinance cover all intersections.  Council Permenter 
had questions about soliciting door to door. 
Lengthy discussion followed. 
Amendments will be added for the 2nd reading. 
Title read by Mayor. 
Motion to suspend the rules and read 1st reading by title only - Council Member Roedel, 
second by Council Member Higginbotham. 
Voice Vote.   
 
 

Human Resources- Charlotte Rue, Director 
 

11. Resolution 2025-39 - A resolution adopting policy and procedures for                    [YT 1:11:20] 
obtaining Commercial Drivers License through the City of Bryant Public Works 
Department and adding policy and procedures to the City of Bryant Employee 
Handbook.  
If an employee leaves the City after obtaining a Commercial Driver’s License, the employee 
must reimburse the City for all CDL costs.   
Motion to accept - Council Roedel, Second by Council Member Martin. 
Voice Vote.  Motion Passed. 

 
 
Planning and Development- presented by Ted Taylor, Director 
 

12. Resolution 2025-40 - A resolution authorizing the Mayor of the City of Bryant,      [YT 1:13:00] 
Arkansas to enter into a contract with Crafton Tull for the Comprehensive Growth Plan 
update; and for other purposes.  
The cost will be covered by the General Fund and will stretch over at least two years. 
Motion to adopt - Council Member Higginbotham, Second by Council Member Permenter.        
Voice Vote.  Motion Passed. 
 

13. Request for a Variance on Flood Plain Ordinance - Tarver Property on          [YT 1:14:30] 
Midland Road 
Motion to allow an appeal- Council Member O’Roark, second by Council Member Permenter. 
Voice Vote.  Motion passed. 
Motion to require the driveway to be three feet above the flood plain and a waiver of liability- 
Council Member Martin, Second by Council Member Higginbotham. 
Voice Vote.  Motion Passed. 

 
 

            September 30, 2025     Council Minutes     3 | Page 
 



Public Works- Tim Fournier, Director 
 

14. Resolution 2025-41 - A resolution allowing for public bidding for sale of          [YT 1:20:00] 
equipment, vehicles and other items as named in this resolution on GovDeals.  
The vehicles listed are fully depreciated and are no longer being used.   
Motion to approve - Council Member Meyer, Second by Council Member Burgess.        
Voice Vote.  Motion Passed. 

 
15. Right of Way Acquisition - For ARDOT Hwy 5 Widening Project           [YT 1:20:30] 

Motion to adopt - Council Member Martin, Second by Council Member Moseley.        
Voice Vote.  Motion Passed. 

 
 

Council Comments 
Council Member Martin- Fall Fest and Antique Car Show this weekend 
Council Higginbotham- Right to Burn begins October 1, 2025. 
 
 
Adjournment 
Motion to Adjourn- Council Member O’Roark, second by Council Member Burgess at 7:53 pm. 
 

            September 30, 2025     Council Minutes     4 | Page 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2025-_____ 

AN ORDINANCE RESTRICTING RIGHT-OF-WAY CANVASSERS AND 
SOLICITORS TO CERTAIN BRYANT STREETS AND ROADWAYS, 
LOCATED WITHIN THE CITY OF BRYANNT, BECAUSE CANVASSERS 
AND SOLICITORS POSE A DANGER TO THEMSELVES AND THE PUBLIC 
AT LARGE BY INTERVENING WITH THE SAFE AND NORMAL FLOW OF 
TRAFFIC; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of Bryant, Arkansas, desires to adopt an ordinance restricting 
right-of-way canvassers and solicitors to certain streets and roadways located in the City because 
such canvassers and solicitors pose a danger to themselves and the public at large by interfering with 
the safe and normal flow of vehicle traffic; and 

WHEREAS, right-of-way canvassers and solicitors approach motorists and passengers while the 
motor vehicle is engaged in travel on roads and are particularly susceptible to serious bodily injury or 
death due to the speed and number of motorists who operate vehicles on roads of the City; and 

WHEREAS, roads are primarily designed for vehicular traffic and are not suited to safely 
accommodate right-of-way canvassers and solicitors; and 

WHEREAS, the presence of right-of-way canvassers and solicitors interferes with the safe 
movement and normal flow of traffic; and 

WHEREAS, there are eleven (11) full-colored traffic lights within the City; and 

WHEREAS, upon additional analysis, the City Council of the City of Bryant, 
Arkansas, has determined that canvassers and solicitors should be limited on additional street corners. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF BRYANT, 
ARKANSAS 
 

SECTION 1: It is the finding of the City Council that other alternative and safer channels of 
communication exist other than right-of-way canvassing and solicitation for a person or people who 
seek to exercise their First Amendment freedoms, such as, but not limited to, mail solicitation for 
donations, or delivery of literature, distribution of literature or solicitation for donations at other 
locations (such as homes, places of worship, businesses, shopping areas, news and magazine racks, 
special events, and any other place not prohibited by law); the distribution or sale of newspapers or 
other literature through the use of home or business delivery, vending machines, and retail stores; and 
the sale of goods and services at retail stores, through the internet, and from vending machines. 

 

SECTION 2: The City Council desires to protect and preserve the safety and quality of life of 
its residents and those who use the streets within the City, both pedestrians and motorists alike. 
 



SECTION 3: The City Council has reviewed the proposed regulations provided by this 
section and finds that such regulations accomplish the intended purposes while utilizing the least 
restrictive means possible. 

SECTION 4: It is the intention of the City Council that this subsection is applied equally to 
all right-of-way canvassers and solicitors, regardless of the right-of-way canvasser and solicitor's 
purpose and/or message. 

SECTION 5: It is the intention of the City that nothing in this section shall prohibit a person 
from engaging in any other lawful activity or speech on the sidewalks in and around intersections, so 
long as that person or people are not right-of-way canvassers and/or solicitors and comply with all 
other state and local laws. 

SECTION 6: The City finds that it is in the best interests of the residents of the city to adopt 
this subsection. 

Prohibited roadways:  It shall be unlawful for any person to act as a right-of-way canvasser and/or 
solicitor at or within two hundred 
(200) feet from the lateral curb or boundary line of any intersection located within the city limits of 
Bryant. 
 

SECTION 7: Those violating these restrictions are guilty of disturbing the peace, and in 
accordance with Ark. Code§ 14-54-1408 may be cited and punishable by a fine up to $100. 
 

SECTION 8: Should any word, phrase, or section of this ordinance be held to be invalid or 
unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect the force and 
validity of the remaining portion of sections of this ordinance.  

 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED THIS ____ DAY OF _______________ 2025, BY THE CITY 
COUNCIL OF BRYANT, ARKANSAS.  
 
 
 

________________________ 
Attest:        Chris Treat, Mayor 
 
 
________________________ 
Mark Smith, City Clerk 

 

 









































































































































































































 

ORDINANCE NO. _________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF A 
WATER AND SEWER REVENUE BOND; PROVIDING FOR 
THE PAYMENT OF THE PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON 
THE BOND; PRESCRIBING OTHER MATTERS RELATING 
THERETO; AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

 
  WHEREAS, the City of Bryant, Arkansas (the "City") owns water and sewer 
facilities, which are operated as one interrelated municipal undertaking (the "System"); and 
 
  WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that certain improvements for the 
System, including particularly, without limitation, the acquisition of certain vehicles and 
equipment (the "Project"), are needed; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the City can pay all or a portion of the costs of the Project by the 
issuance of its Water and Sewer Revenue Bond in the principal amount of $2,960,000 (the 
"bond"); and 
 
  WHEREAS, through the assistance of Stephens Inc. and Crews & Associates, 
Inc., the City has received an offer for the purchase of the bond from Webster Bank, National 
Association (the "Lender"), at a price of par (the "Purchase Price"), pursuant to a Letter of Offer 
and Representations (the "Offer"), which has been presented to and is before this meeting; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the City has outstanding its Water and Sewer Revenue Bond, Series 
2011 (the "2011 Bond"), authorized by Ordinance No. 2011-1, adopted January 13, 2011, as 
amended by Ordinance No. 2021-25, adopted November 16, 2021; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the City has outstanding its Water and Sewer Revenue Bond, Series 
2012 (the "2012 Bond"), authorized by Ordinance No. 2012-14, adopted May 31, 2012, as 
amended by Ordinance No. 2021-26, adopted November 16, 2021; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the City has outstanding its Water and Sewer Refunding Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2017 (the "Parity Bonds"), authorized by Ordinance No. 2017-26, adopted October 
24, 2017; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the City has outstanding its Water and Sewer Revenue Bond, Series 
2024 (the "2024 Bond"), authorized by Ordinance No. 2024-13, adopted August 27, 2024; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the City has outstanding its Water and Sewer Revenue Bond, Series 
2024B (the "2024B Bond"), authorized by Ordinance No. 2024-23, adopted October 29, 2024; 
and 
 
  WHEREAS, the coverage test for securing the bond with a lien on System 
revenues on a parity with the lien on System revenues in favor of the Parity Bonds has been or 
will be met; and  

 



 

 
  WHEREAS, the coverage test for securing the bond with a lien on System 
revenues senior to the lien on System revenues in favor of the 2011 Bond, the 2012 Bond, the 
2024 Bond and the 2024B Bond (collectively, the "Subordinate Bonds") has been or will be met; 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 
Bryant, Arkansas:  
 
  Section 1. The Project shall be accomplished.  The Mayor and City Clerk are 
hereby authorized to take, or cause to be taken, all action necessary to accomplish the same and 
to execute all required documents. 
 
  Section 2. The City Council hereby finds and declares that the period of 
usefulness of the System will be more than 10 years, which is longer than the term of the bond. 
 
  Section 3. The Offer of the Lender for the purchase of the bond from the City 
at the Purchase Price, for a bond bearing interest at the rate per annum, maturing and otherwise 
subject to the terms and provisions hereafter in this Ordinance set forth in detail is hereby 
accepted, and the bond is hereby sold to the Lender.  The Mayor is hereby authorized and 
directed to execute and deliver the Offer on behalf of the City. 
 
  Section 4. Under the authority of the Constitution and laws of the State of 
Arkansas (the "State"), including particularly Title 14, Chapter 234, Subchapter 2, Title 14, 
Chapter 235, Subchapter 2, and Title 14, Chapter 164, Subchapter 4 of the Arkansas Code of 
1987 Annotated and applicable decisions of the Supreme Court of the State, including 
particularly City of Harrison v. Braswell, 209 Ark. 1094, 194 S.W. 2d 12 (1946), a City of 
Bryant, Arkansas Water and Sewer Revenue Bond is hereby authorized and ordered issued in the 
principal amount of $2,960,000 for the purpose of financing all or a portion of the costs of the 
Project and paying expenses of issuing the bond.  The bond shall mature on December 1, 2030 
and shall bear interest at the rate of 3.39% per annum, calculated on a 360-day year consisting of 
twelve 30-day months. 
 
  The bond shall be dated the date of issuance and delivery to the Lender and shall 
be issuable only as one fully registered typewritten bond without coupons and numbered R-1. 
 
  Interest on the bond shall be payable on June 1, 2026 and semiannually thereafter 
on June 1 and December 1 of each year.  Payment of each installment of principal and interest 
shall be made to the person in whose name the bond is registered on the registration books of the 
City maintained by the City Clerk as bond registrar.  Final payment of principal shall be made 
upon presentation and surrender of the bond at the office of the City Clerk. 
 
  The City shall cause books to be maintained for the registration and for the 
transfer of the bond as provided herein and in the bond.  The City Clerk shall act as the bond 
registrar.  The bond is transferable by the registered owner thereof or by his attorney duly 
authorized in writing at the principal office of the City Clerk.  Every transferee shall take the 
transferred bond subject to all payments of principal and interest (as reflected by the Payment 

2 



 

Record to be maintained by the City Clerk), prior to such surrender for transfer.  When the 
principal of and interest on the bond have been fully paid, the bond shall be canceled by the City 
Clerk. 

  No charge shall be made to the registered owner of the bond for the privilege of 
transfer, but the registered owner of the bond requesting any such transfer shall pay any tax or 
other governmental charge required to be paid with respect thereto. 
 
  The person in whose name the bond shall be registered shall be deemed and 
regarded as the absolute owner thereof for all purposes, and payment of or on account of the 
principal or premium, if any, or interest of the bond shall be made only to or upon the order of 
the registered owner thereof or his legal representative, but such registration may be changed as 
hereinabove provided.  All such payments shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge 
the liability upon such bond to the extent of the sum or sums so paid. 
 
  In any case where the date of interest on or principal of the bond or the date fixed 
for redemption of the bond shall be a Saturday or Sunday or shall be in the State a legal holiday 
or a day on which banking institutions are authorized by law to close, then payment of interest or 
principal (and premium, if any) need not be made on such date but may be made on the next 
succeeding business day with the same force and effect as if made on the date of maturity or the 
date fixed for redemption, and no interest shall accrue for the period after the date of maturity or 
date fixed for redemption. 
 
  Section 5. The bond shall be executed on behalf of the City by the manual or 
facsimile signatures of the Mayor and City Clerk and shall have impressed or imprinted thereon 
the seal of the City.  The bond, together with interest thereon, is secured by and is payable solely 
from revenues derived from the System ("Revenues"), which are hereby pledged and mortgaged 
for the equal and ratable payment of the bond.  In this regard, the pledge of Revenues in favor of 
the bond is (a) on a parity with the pledge in favor of the Parity Bonds and (b) senior to the 
pledge in favor of the Subordinate Bonds.  The bond shall not constitute an indebtedness of the 
City within any constitutional or statutory limitation. 
 
  Section 6. The bond shall be in substantially the following form and the 
Mayor and City Clerk are hereby expressly authorized and directed to make all recitals contained 
therein: 
 
 
 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank] 
 

3 



 

(Form of Bond) 
 
REGISTERED REGISTERED 
 
No. R-1 $2,960,000 
 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
STATE OF ARKANSAS 
COUNTY OF SALINE 

CITY OF BRYANT 
WATER AND SEWER REVENUE BOND 

 
Interest Rate: 3.39% Maturity Date: December 1, 2030 
Dated Date: December 2, 2025 
Registered Owner: Webster Bank, National Association 
Principal Amount: Two Million Nine Hundred Sixty Thousand Dollars 
 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:  
 
  That the City of Bryant, County of Saline, State of Arkansas (the "City"), for 
value received, hereby promises to pay, solely from the source as hereinafter provided and not 
otherwise, to the Registered Owner shown above, or registered assigns, on the Maturity Date 
shown above, the Principal Amount shown above, in such coin or currency of the United States 
of America as at the time of payment shall be legal tender for the payment of public and private 
debts and to pay interest thereon, but solely from the source as hereinafter provided and not 
otherwise, in like coin or currency from the Dated Date shown above, at the Interest Rate per 
annum shown above, calculated on a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months, payable 
June 1, 2026 and semiannually thereafter on the first days of June and December of each year, 
until payment of such Principal Amount or, if this bond shall be duly called for redemption, until 
the date fixed for redemption, and to pay interest on overdue principal and interest (to the extent 
legally enforceable) at the rate borne by this bond.  Payment of each installment of principal 
(except final payment) and interest shall be made by wire transfer in immediately available funds 
or other form of electronic payment in accordance with written instructions provided by the 
Registered Owner to the person in whose name this bond is registered on the registration books 
of the City maintained by the City Clerk.  The final payment of principal shall only be made 
upon presentation and surrender hereof at the principal office of the City Clerk. 
 
  This bond is issued for the purpose of financing all or a portion of the costs of 
acquiring certain vehicles and equipment for the City's water and sewer (combined) system (the 
"System") and paying necessary expenses incidental thereto and to the authorization and 
issuance of this bond.  This bond is issued pursuant to and in full compliance with the 
Constitution and laws of the State of Arkansas (the "State"), including particularly Title 14, 
Chapter 234, Subchapter 2, Title 14, Chapter 164, Subchapter 4, and Title 14, Chapter 235, 
Subchapter 2 of the Arkansas Code of 1987 Annotated and applicable decisions of the Supreme 
Court of Arkansas, including particularly City of Harrison v. Braswell, 209 Ark. 1094, 194 S.W. 
2d 12 (1946), and pursuant to Ordinance No. _________, duly adopted on October 28, 2025 (the 

4 



 

"Authorizing Ordinance").  This bond does not constitute an indebtedness of the City within any 
constitutional or statutory limitation.  This bond is not a general obligation of the City, but is a 
special obligation payable solely from the revenues derived from the operation of the System.  In 
this regard, the pledge of System revenues in favor of this bond is (a) on a parity with the pledge 
in favor of the City's Water and Sewer Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2017 and (b) senior to 
the pledge in favor of the City's Water and Sewer Revenue Bond, Series 2011, the City's Water 
and Sewer Revenue Bond, Series 2012, the City's Water and Sewer Revenue Bond, Series 2024 
and the City's Water and Sewer Revenue Bond, Series 2024B.  An amount of System revenues 
sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the bond has been duly pledged and set aside 
into the 2025 Water and Sewer Revenue Bond Fund created by the Authorizing Ordinance.  
Reference is hereby made to the Authorizing Ordinance for a detailed statement of the terms and 
conditions upon which this bond is issued, of the nature and extent of the security for this bond, 
and the rights and obligations of the City and the Registered Owner.  The City has fixed and has 
covenanted and agreed to maintain rates for the services of the System which shall be sufficient 
at all times to provide for the proper and reasonable expenses of operation and maintenance of 
the System and for the payment of the principal of and interest on this bond and on all 
outstanding bonds to which System revenues are pledged, as the same become due and payable, 
to establish and maintain any required debt service reserves and to make the required deposit for 
the depreciation of the System.  
 
  This bond shall be subject to optional and mandatory sinking fund redemption as 
follows: 
 
  1. This bond is subject to redemption at the option of the City, on and after 
December 1, 2028, in whole but not in part on any business day, at a price equal to the 
outstanding principal amount hereof, plus accrued interest to the redemption date. 
 
  2. This bond is subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption on December 
1 in each of the years and in the amounts set forth below, at a redemption price equal to the 
outstanding principal amount hereof, plus accrued interest to the date of redemption: 
 

Year 
(December 1) 

Principal 
Amount 

2026 $555,000 
2027 570,000 
2028 590,000 
2029 610,000 
2030 (maturity) 635,000 

 
  Notice of optional redemption shall be given by the City Clerk, not less than 30 
nor more than 60 days prior to the date fixed for redemption, by mailing a copy of the 
redemption notice by first class mail, postage prepaid, or by sending a copy of the redemption 
notice via other standard means, including electronic or facsimile communication, to the 
Registered Owner.  If funds are duly provided and set aside in accordance with the Authorizing 
Ordinance prior to the date fixed for redemption, this bond will cease to bear interest on such 
redemption date. 

5 



 

 
  This bond is transferable by the Registered Owner hereof in person or by his 
attorney in fact duly authorized in writing at the principal office of the City Clerk, but only in the 
manner, subject to the limitations and upon payment of the charges provided in the Authorizing 
Ordinance, and upon surrender of this bond.  Every transferee shall take this bond subject to all 
payments and redemptions of principal and interest (as reflected by the Payment Record to be 
maintained by the City Clerk), prior to such surrender for transfer.  This bond is issued with the 
intent that the laws of the State shall govern its construction. 
 
  The City may deem and treat the Registered Owner as the absolute owner hereof 
for the purpose of receiving payment of or on account of principal hereof and premium, if any, 
hereon and interest due hereon and for all other purposes, and the City shall not be affected by 
any notice to the contrary. 
 
  IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED, RECITED AND DECLARED that all acts, 
conditions and things required to exist, happen and be performed precedent to and in the issuance 
of this bond do exist, have happened and have been performed in due time, form and manner as 
required by law; that the indebtedness represented by this bond, together with all obligations of 
the City, does not exceed any constitutional or statutory limitation; and that the revenues pledged 
to the payment of the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on this bond as the same 
become due and payable will be sufficient in amount for that purpose. 
 
  THE CITY HAS DESIGNATED THIS BOND AS A "QUALIFIED 
TAX-EXEMPT OBLIGATION" WITHIN THE MEANING OF SECTION 265 OF THE 
INTERNAL REVENUE CODE OF 1986, AS AMENDED. 
 
  IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Bryant, Arkansas has caused this bond to 
be manually executed by its Mayor and City Clerk and its corporate seal to be impressed or 
imprinted on this bond, all as of the Dated Date shown above. 
 
       CITY OF BRYANT, ARKANSAS 
 
ATTEST: 
       By _________________________________ 
                 Mayor 
____________________________________ 
    City Clerk 
 
(SEAL) 

 

6 



 

(Form of Assignment) 
 

ASSIGNMENT 
 
  FOR VALUE RECEIVED, ____________________ ("Transferor"), hereby sells, 
assigns and transfers unto ____________________, the within bond and all rights thereunder, 
and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints ____________________ as attorney to transfer 
the within bond on the books kept for registration thereof with full power of substitution in the 
premises. 
 
  DATE: ___________________ 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
            Transferor 
 
GUARANTEED BY: 
 
_________________________ 
NOTICE:  Signature(s) must be guaranteed by a member of or participant in the Securities 
Transfer Agents Medallion Program (STAMP), or in another signature guaranty program 
recognized by the City. 
 
  Section 7. (a) The rates charged for services of the System heretofore fixed by 
ordinances of the City and the conditions, rights and obligations pertaining thereto, as set out in 
those ordinances, are hereby ratified, confirmed and continued. 
 
  (b) The City covenants and agrees that the rates shall never be reduced while 
the bond is outstanding unless there is obtained from an independent certified public accountant 
not in the regular employ of the City ("Accountant") a certificate that the Net Revenues ("Net 
Revenues" being defined as gross Revenues less the expenses of operation and maintenance of 
the System, including all expense items properly attributable to the operation and maintenance of 
the System under generally accepted accounting principles applicable to municipal water and 
sewer facilities, excluding depreciation, interest and bond amortization expenses), with the 
reduced rates, will always be equal to at least 110% of the average annual principal and interest 
requirements on all outstanding bonds to which Revenues are pledged ("System Bonds").  
 
  (c) The City further covenants and agrees that the rates shall, if and when 
necessary, from time to time, be increased in such manner as will produce Net Revenues at least 
equal to 110% of the average annual principal and interest requirements on all System Bonds.  
 
  Section 8. The City covenants that it will continuously operate the System as 
a revenue-producing undertaking and will not sell or lease the same, or any substantial portion 
thereof; provided, however, that nothing herein shall be construed to prohibit the City from 
making such dispositions of properties of the System and such replacements and substitutions for 

7 



 

properties of the System as shall be necessary or incidental to the efficient operation of the 
System as a revenue-producing undertaking. 
 
  Section 9. The Treasurer of the City shall be statutory custodian of the 
Revenues.  Each employee of the City handling Revenues shall give bond for the faithful 
discharge of his or her duties in such amounts as approved by the City Council.  All Revenues 
shall at all times be accounted for separately and distinctly from other moneys of the City and 
shall be used and applied only as provided herein.  Except as hereinafter provided, all Revenues 
shall be deposited in such depository or depositories for the City as may be lawfully designated 
from time to time by the City; subject, however, to the giving of security as now or hereafter may 
be required by law, and provided that such depository or depositories shall hold membership in 
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC") or any successor entity.  All deposits shall 
be in the name of the City and shall be so designated as to indicate the particular fund to which 
the Revenues belong.  Except as hereinafter provided, all payments from the respective funds 
shall be by check or voucher, signed by two persons designated by the City Council and drawn 
on the depository with which the moneys in the fund shall have been deposited and each such 
check or voucher shall briefly specify the purpose of the expenditure. 
 
  Section 10. All Revenues shall be deposited into a fund heretofore created and 
designated as the "Water and Sewer System Revenue Fund" (the "Revenue Fund").  Moneys in 
the Revenue Fund shall be applied to the payment of the reasonable and necessary expenses of 
operation and maintenance of the System, to the payment of the principal of and interest on the 
bond and other System Bonds, to the maintenance of any required debt service reserve funds, to 
the providing of the Depreciation Fund, and otherwise as described herein. 
 
  Section 11. There shall first be paid from the Revenue Fund into a fund 
heretofore created and designated "Water and Sewer System Operation and Maintenance Fund" 
(the "Operation and Maintenance Fund"), on or before the first business day of each month, an 
amount sufficient to pay the reasonable and necessary expenses of operation, repair and 
maintenance of the System for such month and from which disbursements shall be made only for 
those purposes.  Fixed annual charges, such as insurance premiums and the cost of major repair 
and maintenance expenses may be computed and set up on an annual basis and one-twelfth 
(1/12) of the amount thereof may be paid into the Operation and Maintenance Fund each month. 
 
  If in any month for any reason there shall be a failure to transfer and pay the 
required amount into the Operation and Maintenance Fund, the amount of the deficiency shall be 
added to the amount otherwise required to be transferred and paid into the fund the next 
succeeding month.  If in any fiscal year a surplus shall be accumulated in the Operation and 
Maintenance Fund over and above the amount necessary to meet the requirements thereof during 
the remainder of the then current fiscal year and the next ensuing fiscal year, such surplus may 
be transferred into the Revenue Fund. 
 
  Section 12. (a) After making the required payment into the Operation and 
Maintenance Fund, there shall be transferred from the Revenue Fund into a special fund hereby 
created and designated "2025 Water and Sewer Revenue Bond Fund" (the "Bond Fund"), the 

8 



 

sums in the amounts and at the times hereinafter stated in subsection (b) for the purpose of 
providing funds for the payment of the principal of and interest on the bond as it matures. 
 
  (b) There shall be paid into the Bond Fund on the first business day of each 
month until the bond with interest thereon has been paid in full or provision made for such 
payment, a sum equal to 1/6 of the next installment of interest on the bond plus 1/12 of the next 
installment of principal; provided, however, that monthly payments through November 2026 
shall be adjusted as necessary in order to provide sufficient funds to pay principal of and interest 
on the bond through and including December 1, 2026.  The City shall realize a credit against 
monthly deposits into the Bond Fund from interest earnings on moneys in the Bond Fund. 
 
  (c) If Revenues are insufficient to make the required payment on the first 
business day of the following month into the Bond Fund, the amount of any such deficiency in 
the payment made shall be added to the amount otherwise required to be paid into the Bond Fund 
on the first business day of the next month.  
 
  If a surplus shall exist in the Bond Fund over and above the amount required for 
making all principal and interest payments during the next succeeding twelve-month period, such 
surplus shall be deposited into the Revenue Fund. 
 
  (d) When the moneys held in the Bond Fund shall be and remain sufficient to 
pay the principal of and interest on the bond, the City shall not be obligated to make any further 
payments into the Bond Fund. 
 
  (e) It shall be the duty of the City to cause to be withdrawn from the Bond 
Fund at least one (1) business day before the due date for the principal and/or interest on the 
bond, at maturity or redemption prior to maturity and paid to the registered owner of the bond the 
amount of the bond and interest due thereon for the sole purpose of paying the same.  No 
withdrawal of funds from the Bond Fund shall be made for any other purpose except as 
otherwise authorized in this Ordinance. 
 
  (f) The bond shall be specifically secured by a pledge of all Revenues.  This 
pledge in favor of the bond is hereby irrevocably made according to the terms of this Ordinance, 
and the City and its officers and employees shall execute, perform and carry out the terms thereof 
in strict conformity with the provisions of this Ordinance.  
 
  (g) Simultaneously with making the deposit into the Bond Fund, there shall be 
transferred from the Revenue Fund into the bond fund for the Parity Bonds (the "Parity Bond 
Fund"), an amount equal to the required monthly deposit into such fund.  The obligation to make 
the required monthly deposits into the Bond Fund and the Parity Bond Fund shall rank on a 
parity of security.  If the City issues any additional parity bonds, the obligation to make payments 
into debt service funds for those bonds shall rank on a parity of security with the obligation to 
make payments into the Bond Fund and the Parity Bond Fund.  In the event the Revenues 
remaining after the required monthly deposit into the Operation and Maintenance Fund are 
insufficient to make the full monthly deposits into the Bond Fund, the Parity Bond Fund and the 

9 



 

bond funds for the additional parity bonds, the amount deposited into each shall be reduced 
proportionately. 

  Section 13. After making the payments set forth above and after making the 
payments into the bond funds for the Subordinate Bonds, there shall be paid from the Revenue 
Fund into a fund heretofore created and designated "Water and Sewer System Depreciation 
Fund" (the "Depreciation Fund") on or before the first business day of each month, an amount 
equal to (a) 5% of the gross Revenues for the preceding month or (b) such other amount required 
by State law.  The moneys in the Depreciation Fund shall be used for the purpose of paying the 
costs of repairs and replacements made necessary by the depreciation of the System and for the 
purpose of paying the cost of economically justifiable extensions to the System. 
 
  Section 14. Any surplus in the Revenue Fund after making all disbursements 
and providing for all funds described above may be used, at the option of the City, for any lawful 
municipal purpose. 
 
  Section 15. So long as the bond is outstanding, the City shall not issue or 
attempt to issue any bonds claimed to be entitled to a priority of lien on Revenues over the lien 
securing the bond.  The City reserves the right to issue additional bonds to finance or pay the 
cost of constructing any future extensions, betterments or improvements to the System or to 
refund bonds issued for such purposes, but the City shall not authorize or issue any such 
additional bonds ranking on a parity with the bond unless there has been procured and filed with 
the City Clerk and the registered owner of the bond a statement by an Accountant reciting the 
opinion, based upon necessary investigation, that the Net Revenues (as defined in Section 7) for 
the fiscal year immediately preceding the fiscal year in which it is proposed to issue such 
additional bonds shall equal not less than 110% of the average annual principal and interest 
requirements on the then outstanding System Bonds and the additional bonds then proposed to be 
issued.  In making the computation set forth above, the City, and the Accountant on behalf of the 
City, may, based upon the opinion or report of an independent consulting engineer or rate analyst 
not in the regular employ of the City, treat any increase in rates for the System enacted 
subsequent to the first day of such preceding fiscal year as having been in effect throughout such 
fiscal year and may include in gross Revenues for such fiscal year the amount that would have 
been received, based on such opinion or report, had the increase been in effect throughout such 
fiscal year. 
 
  The additional bonds, the issuance of which is restricted and conditioned by this 
Section, shall not be deemed to mean bonds the security and source of payment of which are 
subordinate and subject to the priority of the bond, and such additional bonds may be issued 
without complying with the terms and conditions of this Section. 
 
  Section 16. The bond shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity in 
accordance with the terms set out in the bond form in Section 6 hereof. The City covenants and 
agrees to cause to be paid into the Bond Fund sufficient funds to redeem the bond in the amounts 
and on the dates set forth in the bond.  Therefore, in calculating the monthly payments to be 
deposited into the Bond Fund, the term "next installment of principal" shall include the principal 
of the bond maturing on the next principal payment date and the principal of the bond which will 

10 



 

be redeemed in accordance with the mandatory sinking fund redemption provisions of the bond 
on the next interest payment date scheduled for such redemption. 
 
  Section 17. (a) The City shall cause proper books of accounts and records to be 
kept (separate from all other records and accounts) in which complete and correct entries shall be 
made of all transactions relating to the operation of the System, and such books shall be available 
for inspection by the registered owner of the bond at reasonable times and under reasonable 
circumstances.  The City agrees to have these records audited by an Accountant at least once 
each year.  In the event that the City fails or refuses to make the audit, the registered owner of the 
bond may have the audit made, and the cost thereof shall be charged against the Operation and 
Maintenance Fund.   
 

(b) A copy of the audited financial statements of the System shall be provided 
to the registered owner of the bond within 180 days after the end of each fiscal year; provided, 
however, that if the audited financial statements are unavailable on that date, the City will 
provide the registered owner with unaudited financial statements and will provide the audited 
financial statements to the registered owner within 30 days after receipt thereof.  To the extent 
the City files such information on the Electronic Municipal Market Access system ("EMMA") 
maintained by the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board, such requirement for delivery to the 
registered owner shall be deemed satisfied.  The audited financial statements may be sent to the 
following email address (or such other address as the registered owner of the bond supplies to the 
City in writing):  PublicFinance@WebsterBank.com. 
 
  Section 18. The City covenants that it will maintain the System in good 
condition and operate the same in an efficient manner and at reasonable cost.  While the bond is 
outstanding, the City agrees that it will insure and at all times keep insured, in the amount of the 
actual value thereof, in a responsible insurance company or companies authorized and qualified 
under the laws of the State to assume the risk thereof, properties of the System, to the extent that 
such properties would be covered by insurance by private companies engaged in similar types of 
businesses against loss or damage thereto from fire and other perils included in extended 
coverage insurance in effect in the State.  In the event of loss, the proceeds of such insurance 
shall be applied solely toward the reconstruction, replacement or repair of the System, and in 
such event the City will, with reasonable promptness, cause to be commenced and completed the 
reconstruction, replacement and repair work. If such proceeds are more than sufficient for such 
purposes, the balance remaining shall be deposited to the credit of the Revenue Fund, and if such 
proceeds shall be insufficient for such purposes the deficiency shall be supplied first from 
moneys in the Depreciation Fund and second from moneys in the Operation and Maintenance 
Fund and third from available moneys in the Revenue Fund.  Nothing shall be construed as 
requiring the City to expend any moneys for operation and maintenance of the System or for 
premiums on its insurance which are derived from sources other than the operation of the 
System, but nothing shall be construed as preventing the City from doing so.   
 
  Section 19. The bond shall be deemed to be paid within the meaning of this 
Ordinance when payment of the principal of and interest on the bond (whether at maturity or 
upon redemption as provided herein, or otherwise), either (i) shall have been made or caused to 
be made in accordance with the terms thereof, or (ii) shall have been provided for by irrevocably 

11 



 

depositing with the registered owner of the bond, in trust and irrevocably set aside exclusively 
for such payment, (1) cash fully insured by the FDIC and/or fully collateralized with 
Government Obligations (as hereinafter defined) sufficient to make such payment and/or (2) 
direct or fully guaranteed obligations of (including obligations issued or held in book entry form 
on the books of) the Department of the Treasury of the United States of America ("Government 
Obligations") (provided that such deposit will not affect the tax exempt status of the interest on 
the bond or cause the bond to be classified as an "arbitrage bond" within the meaning of Section 
148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code")), maturing as to principal 
and interest in such amounts and at such times as will provide sufficient moneys to make such 
payment. 
 
  Section 20. If there be any default in the payment of the principal of or interest 
on the bond, or if the City defaults in any Bond Fund requirement or in the performance of any 
of the other covenants contained in this Ordinance, the registered owner of the bond may, by 
proper suit, compel the performance of the duties of the officials of the City under the laws of the 
State.  And in the case of a default in the payment of the principal of and interest on the bond, the 
registered owner of the bond may apply in a proper action to a court of competent jurisdiction for 
the appointment of a receiver to administer the System on behalf of the City and the registered 
owner of the bond with power to charge and collect (or by mandatory injunction or otherwise to 
cause to be charged and collected) rates sufficient to provide for the payment of the expenses of 
operation and maintenance and to pay the bond and interest outstanding and to apply the 
Revenues in conformity with the laws of the State and with this Ordinance.  When all defaults in 
principal and interest payments have been cured, the custody and operation of the System shall 
revert to the City.  
 
  Except in the case of a default in the payment of the principal of or interest on the 
bond, the registered owner of the bond shall not have any right to institute any suit, action, 
mandamus or other proceeding in equity or at law for the protection or enforcement of any power 
or right unless such registered owner previously shall have given to the City written notice of the 
default on account of which such suit, action or proceeding is to be taken, and unless such 
default is not cured within thirty (30) days.  The registered owner of the bond shall not have any 
right in any manner whatever by his or her action to affect, disturb or prejudice the security of 
this Ordinance, or to enforce any right thereunder except in the manner herein described.  All 
proceedings at law or in equity shall be instituted, had and maintained in the manner herein 
described and for the benefit of the registered owner of the bond. 
 
  No remedy conferred upon or reserved to the registered owner of the bond is 
intended to be exclusive of any other remedy or remedies, and every such remedy shall be 
cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given under this Ordinance or by law. 
 
  No delay or omission of the registered owner of the bond to exercise any right or 
power accrued upon any default shall impair any such right or power or shall be construed to be 
a waiver of any such default or acquiescence therein; and every power and remedy given by this 
Ordinance to the registered owner of the bond may be exercised from time to time and as often 
as may be deemed expedient. 
 

12 



 

  In any proceeding to enforce the provisions of this Ordinance any plaintiff 
bondholder shall be entitled to recover from the City all costs of such proceeding, including 
reasonable attorneys' fees. 
 
  Section 21. When the bond has been executed, it shall be delivered to the 
Lender upon payment of the Purchase Price.  The Purchase Price shall be deposited into a special 
account in the name of the City hereby created in a bank selected by the City that is a member of 
the FDIC and designated "2025 Water and Sewer Revenue Bond Construction Fund" (the 
"Construction Fund").  The moneys in the Construction Fund shall be disbursed solely in 
payment of the costs of accomplishing the Project, paying necessary expenses incidental thereto, 
and paying expenses of issuing the bond.  Disbursements shall be on the basis of checks which 
shall contain at least the following information:  the person to whom payment is being made; the 
amount of the payment; and the purpose by general classification of the payment.  Each check 
must be signed by two persons designated by the City Council.   
 
  When all required expenses have been paid and expenditures made from the 
Construction Fund for and in connection with the accomplishment of the Project and the 
financing thereof, this fact shall, if there are moneys on hand in the Construction Fund, be 
evidenced by a certificate signed by the Mayor, which certificate shall state, among other things, 
that all obligations payable from the Construction Fund have been discharged.  A copy of the 
certificate shall be filed with the depository of the Construction Fund, and upon receipt thereof, 
such depository shall transfer any remaining balance to the City for deposit into the Bond Fund 
to be used to redeem the bond. 
 
  Section 22. (a) The City covenants that it shall not take any action or suffer or 
permit any action to be taken or conditions to exist which causes or may cause the interest 
payable on the bond to be included in gross income for federal income tax purposes.  Without 
limiting the generality of the foregoing, the City covenants that the proceeds of the sale of the 
bond and the Revenues will not be used directly or indirectly in such manner as to cause the 
bond to be treated as an "arbitrage bond" within the meaning of Section 148 of the Code. 
 
  (b) The City shall assure that (i) not in excess of 10% of the Net Proceeds of 
the bond is used for Private Business Use if, in addition, the payment of more than 10% of the 
principal or 10% of the interest due on the bond during the term thereof is, under the terms of the 
bond or any underlying arrangement, directly or indirectly secured by any interest in property 
used or to be used for a Private Business Use or in payments in respect of property used or to be 
used for a Private Business Use or is to be derived from payments, whether or not to the City, in 
respect of property or borrowed moneys used or to be used for a Private Business Use; and (ii) 
that, in the event that both (A) in excess of 5% of the Net Proceeds of the bond are used for a 
Private Business Use, and (B) an amount in excess of 5% of the principal or 5% of the interest 
due on the bond during the term thereof is, under the terms of the bond or any underlying 
arrangement, directly or indirectly, secured by any interest in property used or to be used for said 
Private Business Use or in payments in respect of property used or to be used for said Private 
Business Use or is to be derived from payments, whether or not to the City, in respect of property 
or borrowed money used or to be used for said Private Business Use, then said excess over said 

13 



 

5% of Net Proceeds of the bond used for a Private Business Use shall be used for a Private 
Business Use related to the governmental use of the System. 
 
  The City shall assure that not in excess of 5% of the Net Proceeds of the bond are 
used, directly or indirectly, to make or finance a loan to persons other than state or local 
governmental units. 
 
  As used in this subsection (b), the following terms shall have the following 
meanings: 

  "Net Proceeds" means the face amount of the bond. 
 
  "Private Business Use" means use directly or indirectly in a trade or business 
carried on by a natural person or in any activity carried on by a person other than a natural 
person, excluding, however, use by a state or local governmental unit and use as a member of the 
general public. 
 
  (c) The bond is hereby designated as a "qualified tax-exempt obligation" 
within the meaning of the Code.  The City represents that the aggregate principal amount of its 
qualified tax-exempt obligations (excluding "private activity bonds" within the meaning of 
Section 141 of the Code which are not "qualified 501(c)(3) bonds" within the meaning of Section 
145 of the Code), including those of its subordinate entities, issued in calendar year 2025 are not 
reasonably expected to exceed $10,000,000. 
 
  (d) The City covenants that it will take no action which would cause the bond 
to be "federally guaranteed" within the meaning of Section 149(b) of the Code.  Nothing in this 
Section shall prohibit investments in bonds issued by the United States Treasury. 
 
  (e) The City covenants that it will submit to the Secretary of the Treasury of 
the United States, not later than the 15th day of the second calendar month after the close of the 
calendar quarter in which the bond is issued, a statement required by Section 149(e) of the Code. 
 
  (f) The City covenants that it will retain all documents and records pertaining 
to the bond and the Project for the life of the bond plus an additional three (3) years. 
 

  (g) The City covenants that it will not reimburse 
itself from proceeds of the bond for any costs paid prior to 
the date the bond is issued except in compliance with 
United States Treasury Regulation §1.150-2 (the 
"Regulation").  Resolution No. 2025-04, adopted February 
13, 2025, shall constitute an "official intent" for purposes of 
the Regulation. 

 
  (h) The City represents that it does not reasonably expect that it and all 
subordinate entities will issue tax-exempt obligations (not including "private activity bonds" 
within the meaning of Section 141 of the Code) in amounts exceeding $5,000,000 in calendar 

14 



 

year 2025.  The City covenants that at least 95% of the net proceeds of the bond will be used to 
accomplish local governmental activities of the City. 
 
  Section 23. (a) Moneys held for the credit of the Bond Fund shall be 
continuously invested and reinvested in Permitted Investments (as hereinafter defined), which 
shall mature, or which shall be subject to redemption by the holder thereof, at the option of such 
holder, not later than the payment date for interest or principal and interest. 
 
  (b) Moneys held for the credit of any other fund, including the Construction 
Fund, may be invested and reinvested in Permitted Investments (as hereinafter defined), or other 
investments as may, from time to time, be permitted by State law, which shall mature, or which 
shall be subject to redemption by the holder thereof, at the option of such holder, not later than 
the date or dates when the moneys held for the credit of the particular fund will be required for 
purposes intended. 
 
  (c) Obligations so purchased as an investment of moneys in any fund shall be 
deemed at all times to be a part of such fund and the interest accruing thereon and any profit 
realized from such investments shall be credited to such fund, and any loss resulting from such 
investment shall be charged to such fund. 
 
  (d) Moneys so invested in Government Obligations or in certificates of 
deposit of banks to the extent insured by FDIC, need not be secured by the depository bank or 
banks. 
 
  (e) "Permitted Investments" are defined as (i) Government Obligations, (ii) 
direct obligations of an agency, instrumentality or government-sponsored enterprise created by 
act of the United States Congress and authorized to issue securities or evidences of indebtedness, 
regardless of whether the securities or evidences of indebtedness are guaranteed for repayment 
by the United States Government, (iii) certificates of deposit or demand deposits of banks, which 
are insured by FDIC or, if in excess of insurance coverage, collateralized by Government 
Obligations or other investments authorized by State law to secure public funds or (iv) money 
market funds invested exclusively in Government Obligations and the obligations described in 
(ii) above. 
 
  (f) All investments and deposits shall have a par value (or market value when 
less than par), exclusive of accrued interest at all times at least equal to the amount of money 
credited to such funds and shall be made in such a manner that the money required to be 
expended from any fund will be available at the proper time or times. 
 
  (g) Investments of moneys in all funds shall be valued in terms of current 
market value as of the last day of each year, except that direct obligations of the United States 
(State and Local Government Series) in book-entry form shall be continuously valued at par or 
face principal amount. 
 
  Section 24. In the event the office of Mayor, City Clerk, City Treasurer, or City 
Council shall be abolished, or any two or more of such offices shall be merged or consolidated, 

15 



 

or in the event the duties of a particular office shall be transferred to another office or officer, or 
in the event of a vacancy in any such office by reason of death, resignation, removal from office 
or otherwise, or in the event any such officer shall become incapable of performing the duties of 
his office by reason of sickness, absence from the City or otherwise, all powers conferred and all 
obligations and duties imposed upon such office or officer shall be performed by the office or 
officer succeeding to the principal functions thereof, or by the office or officer upon whom such 
powers, obligations and duties shall be imposed by law.   
 
  Section 25. The Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to work with Friday, 
Eldredge & Clark, LLP, as bond counsel, to review and revise, as needed, its written procedures 
to monitor compliance with federal tax requirements with respect to tax-exempt obligations of 
the City. 
 
  Section 26. Stephens Inc. and Crews & Associates, Inc. are hereby retained as 
Placement Agents in connection with the issuance of the bond. 
 

Section 27. In the event the City files with EMMA this Ordinance or any 
description of the material terms thereof or notice of any agreement to covenants, events of 
default, remedies, priority rights or other similar terms, or any other document or certificate 
signed or delivered by the registered owner of the bond, either voluntarily or as required pursuant 
to a continuing disclosure agreement or Rule 15c2-12 promulgated pursuant to the Securities and 
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Rule") (each such posting, an "EMMA Posting"), the 
City shall (i) provide the registered owner of the bond with a copy of each EMMA Posting prior 
to submitting or posting on EMMA and (ii) shall not file or permit the filing of any EMMA 
Posting that includes Confidential Information. The City acknowledges and agrees that the 
registered owner of the bond is not responsible for the City’s or any other entity’s (including, but 
not limited to, any broker-dealer’s) compliance or noncompliance (or any claims, losses or 
liabilities arising therefrom) with any continuing disclosure agreement or any applicable 
securities or other laws, including, but not limited to, those relating to the Rule.  "Confidential 
Information" means any sensitive or confidential information regarding the City or the registered 
owner of the bond, including, without limitation, address, account and wiring information, e-mail 
addresses, telephone numbers, facsimile numbers, logos, names and signatures of officers, 
employees or representatives of the City and the registered owner of the bond. 
 
  Section 28. The provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be 
separable and if any provision shall for any reason be held illegal or invalid, such holding shall 
not affect the validity of the remainder of this Ordinance.  
 
  Section 29. All ordinances and resolutions or parts thereof in conflict herewith 
are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 
 
  Section 30. It is hereby ascertained and declared that the Project is 
immediately needed for the preservation of the public peace, health and safety and to remove 
existing hazards thereto.  The Project cannot be accomplished without the issuance of the bond, 
which cannot be sold at the interest rate specified herein unless this Ordinance is immediately 
effective.  Therefore, it is declared that an emergency exists and this Ordinance being necessary 

16 



 

for the preservation of the public peace, health and safety shall be in force and take effect 
immediately upon and after its passage. 

 

17 



 

 
  PASSED:  October 28, 2025 
 
       APPROVED: 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
ATTEST:                Mayor 
 
 
____________________________________ 
      City Clerk 
 
(SEAL) 
 

18 



 

CERTIFICATE 
 
  The undersigned, City Clerk of the City of Bryant, Arkansas, hereby certifies that 
the foregoing pages are a true and perfect copy of Ordinance No. _________, adopted at a 
regular session of the City Council of the City of Bryant, Arkansas, held at the regular meeting 
place in said City at 6:30 p.m., on the 28th day of October, 2025, and that the Ordinance is of 
record in Ordinance Record Book No. _____, Page _____, now in my possession.  
 
  GIVEN under my hand and seal on this 28th day of October, 2025. 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
           City Clerk  
 
(SEAL) 

 













































AGENDA ITEM HISTORY SHEET 
ITEM TITLE 
Fee Schedule for Animal Control 

AGENDA NO.  11

AGENDA DATE: 1012812025

FUNDING CERTIFICATION {Finance Director) {Signature, if applicable) 

MANAGEMENT STAFF REVIEW {Signature) 

MAYOR{Signature) 
... --=----

L? 1�-
ITEM HISTORY {Previous Council reviews, action related to this item, and other pertinent history) 

Department Policy dictates that the Animal Control Director regularly conduct reviews of the 
fees charges for all services of the department. 

ITEM COMMENTARY {Background discussion, key points, recommendations, etc.) Please identify 
any or all impacts this proposed action would have on the City budget, personnel resources, and/ or 
residents. 
Some costs on the department have increased, leading to increases in fees charged by the 
department. Two examples include: pet cremation, which has had at least two price increases 
since we last changed any of our fees in 2015, and postage costs has been increased ten times 
since then. After hours call outs have continued to increase in number, resulting in increased 
operating costs for the City. We considered what other communities in Central Arkansas are 
charging for comparable services, and our fees are, overall, are still less than some of our 
neighbors. Our goal is to keep costs reasonable and affordable for the community and know 
that any fees we charge will not cover our operating costs, we still want to provide at least some 
financial support of our fiscal budget. 

(This section to be completed by the Mayor) 

ACTION PROPOSED (Motion for Consideration) 

After all three readings are concluded, adopt. 



 ORDINANCE NO. 2025 - ___ 

 AN ORDINANCE REPEALING ORDINANCE NO. 2015-45; SETTING THE FEE SCHEDULE 
 FOR THE DEPARTMENT OF ANIMAL CONTROL IN THE CITY OF BRYANT 

 WHEREAS  , The City of Bryant Animal Control Department  reviews the fees it charges for some 
 services provided to the public on a regular basis, and; 

 WHEREAS,  The department is mandated by the Director  of Animal Control to improve its 
 lifesaving ability for impounded animals in order to effectively reduce the number of animals 
 killed within the shelter when reunification, adoption or transfer is not possible, and; 

 WHEREAS,  The cost of some operations have increased  since the Animal Control Department 
 last reviewed the fee schedule and implemented adjustments in 2015, and; 

 WHEREAS,  The City adopted Ordinance No. 2015-45 to  establish fees for services offered by 
 the Animal Control Department, pet licensing and other operations; the current fee schedule is 
 outdated, and further that efficiencies can be achieved by simplifying the costs of licensing 
 animals within the City and to effectuate the online payment process that the Department has 
 implemented; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BRYANT, 
 THAT  : 

 Article 1. Repealing Ordinance No. 2015-45 
 Ordinance No. 2015-45 hereby repealed in its entirety and replaced with the following: 

 Article 2. Regular Review of Fee Schedule is Required 
 It is hereby mandated that the Animal Control Director, or his/her designee, is required to review 
 and update this ordinance, as necessary, at least once every three (3) years, or more often if 
 current economic conditions require it. 

 Article 3. Establishment of Fee Schedule for Animal Control Services 
 It is hereby established that the following Schedule of Fees collected by Bryant Animal Control 
 & Adoption Center are hereby established: 

 1 



 Animal Impoundment & Care 

 Fee Name  Amount  How Applied 

 Fees for Dogs & Cats 

 1st Impound/Pickup - Wearing ID and 
 Neutered 

 $25.00  Per Animal, Per Incident 

 1st Impound - No ID  $40.00  Per Animal, Per Incident 

 2nd Impound  $80.00  Per Animal, Per Incident 

 3rd Impound  $160.00  Per Animal, Per Incident 

 4th & Subsequent Impound  $320.00  Per Animal, Per Incident 

 After-Hours Impound Fee  $65.00 

 Per Animal, Per Incident and in 
 Addition to the Appropriate 

 Regular Impound Fee listed 
 above 

 In-Estrus Impound Fee  $25.00  Per Animal, Per Incident 

 Fees for Other Species of Animals 

 Fowl Impound Fee  $15.00  Per Animal, Per Incident 

 Livestock or Exotic Animal Impound 
 Fee Weight: 0.1oz - 50 lbs 

 $45.00  Per Animal, Per Incident 

 Livestock or Exotic Animal Impound 
 Fee 51 - 75 lbs 

 $90.00  Per Animal, Per Incident 

 Livestock or Exotic Animal Impound 
 Fee 76 - 100 lbs 

 $150.00  Per Animal, Per Incident 

 Livestock or Exotic Animal Impound 
 Fee 101 - 200 lbs 

 $200.00  Per Animal, Per Incident 

 Livestock or Exotic Animal Impound 
 Fee 201 - 300 lbs 

 $300.00  Per Animal, Per Incident 

 Livestock or Exotic Animal Impound 
 Fee Over 301 lbs or requiring special 

 equipment. 
 $1000.00 

 Per Animal, Per Incident and in 
 Addition 

 Second Impound for Livestock or 
 Exotic Animal Impound Fee - Any 

 Weight 
 $75.00 

 Per Animal, Per Incident and in 
 Addition to the Appropriate 
 Livestock or Exotic Animal 
 Impound Fee listed above 

 Page  2  Ordinance No. 2025 - ______ 



 Third, and Subsequent Impound for 
 Livestock or Exotic Animal Impound 

 Fee - Any Weight 
 $150.00 

 Per Animal, Per Incident and in 
 Addition to the Appropriate 
 Livestock or Exotic Animal 
 Impound Fee listed above 

 Boarding Fees 

 Emergency Boarding  $0.00 
 Per Animal, per Day, for a 

 maximum of 15 consecutive days. 

 Regular Boarding  $10.00  Per Animal, per Day 

 Quarantine/Prosecution  $20.00  Per Animal, per Day 

 Non-Human Primate Quarantine 
 $45.00 + Cost of 

 Preparation Materials 
 or Special Housing 

 Per Animal, per Day, except for 
 preparation costs which are as 

 needed. 

 Livestock/Exotic Animal Boarding, 
 0.1oz - 30 lbs 

 $15.00 + Cost of Feed, 
 Preparation Materials 

 or Special Housing 
 Boarding/Housing 

 Costs 

 Per Animal, per Day, except for 
 preparation costs which are as 

 needed. 

 Livestock/Exotic Animal Boarding, 31 
 - 75 lbs 

 $25.00 + Cost of Feed, 
 Preparation Materials 

 or Special 
 Boarding/Housing 

 Costs 

 Per Animal, per Day, except for 
 preparation costs which are as 

 needed. 

 Livestock/Exotic Animal Boarding, 
 75.1 - 175 lbs 

 $35.00 + Cost of Feed, 
 Preparation Materials 

 or Special 
 Boarding/Housing 

 Costs 

 Per Animal, per Day, except for 
 preparation costs which are as 

 needed. 

 Livestock/Exotic Animal Boarding, 
 175.1 - 250 lbs 

 $45.00 + Cost of Feed, 
 Preparation Materials 

 or Special 
 Boarding/Housing 

 Costs 

 Per Animal, per Day, except for 
 preparation costs which are as 

 needed. 

 Livestock/Exotic Animal Boarding, 
 250.1 + lbs 

 $65.00 + Cost of Feed, 
 Preparation Materials 

 or Special 
 Boarding/Housing 

 Costs 

 Per Animal, per Day, except for 
 preparation costs which are as 

 needed. 

 Page  3  Ordinance No. 2025 - ______ 



 Puppies/Kittens Impounded 
 w/Nursing Mother 

 $5.00 
 Per Animal, per Day, until the litter 

 is 5 weeks of age, then regular 
 boarding fees apply. 

 Veterinary Care & Treatment 

 Bath  $10.00  Per Treatment 

 Flea/Tick Treatment  $10.00  Per Treatment 

 Emergency Veterinary Care  Varies  Based on animal's needs 

 Adoption Fees 

 Adoption  $20.00  Per Animal 

 Medical Care, Miscellaneous  $20.00  Per Animal 

 Spay/Neuter  $60.00  Per Animal 

 Adoption - Small Animals  $5.00  Per Animal 

 Supplemental Adoption Fee for 
 Puppies, or Purebreds 

 $30.00  Per Animal 

 Adoption - Exotics  Set by Director  Per Animal 

 Adoption - Misc  Set by Director  Per Animal 

 Adoption - Discount  Set by Director  Per Animal, as needed 

 Senior & Military Discount  -$20 
 Per Animal, 

 Adopters 65 years of age or older 

 End of Life Services 

 Euthanasia 0.01 - 50 lbs  $45.00  Per Animal 

 Euthanasia 51-99 lbs  $55.00  Per Animal 

 Euthanasia 100-125 lbs  $95.00  Per Animal 

 Euthanasia 125 - 175 lbs 
 $155.00 + $2.00 

 per lb over 135 
 Per Animal, over 175 lbs must be 

 done at a Veterinary clinic. 

 Private Cremation with Return, 0.01 - 
 25 lbs 

 $200.00 
 Per Animal 

 Private Cremation with Return, 25.01 
 - 50 lbs 

 $205.00  Per Animal 

 Private Cremation with Return, 50.01 
 - 150  lbs 

 $250.00 
 Per Animal 

 Page  4  Ordinance No. 2025 - ______ 



 Semi-Private Cremation with Return 
 01.01 - 25 lbs  $110.00  Per Animal 

 Semi-Private Cremation with Return 
 25.01 - 50 lbs  $135.00 

 Per Animal, 
 over 50 lbs must be Private 

 Communal Cremation without Return 
 0.01 - 25 lbs 

 $45.00  Per Animal 

 Communal Cremation without Return 
 25.01 - 100 lbs 

 $55.00  Per Animal 

 Communal Cremation without Return 
 100.01 - 150 lbs 

 $65.00  Per Animal 

 Communal Cremation without Return 
 185.01 - 175 lbs 

 $125.00  Per Animal 

 Urn or Remains Container  Cost  Per Animal 

 Pet Memorial Service  TBD  Per Item 

 Permits & Licensing 

 Dog License  $5.00  Annually, Per Animal 

 Lifetime Dog License  $50.00  On-time 

 Wild Animal Permit  $100.00  Annually 

 Animal Establishment Permit - 
 Grooming Shops/Boarding 

 Kennels/Catteries  $35.00  Annually 

 Animal Establishment Permit - Pet 
 Shops  $55.00  Annually 

 Dangerous Dog Permit  $500.00  Annually 

 Vicious Dog Bond, 
 Pending Court Case  $500.00 

 1-Time Fee, 
 Refundable if court ordered 

 Miscellaneous 

 Credit/Debit Processing  $5.00  Charged per Transaction 

 Postage/Shipping for Online License  $3.50  Charged per License 

 Section 2. Authority to Grant Fee Exception 
 The Animal Control Director, at their discretion, may waive these fees in cases of extenuating or 
 emergency circumstances including but not limited to, overcrowding at the animal shelter, 
 natural or man-made disaster, and/or individual emergency circumstances of the pet owner. 

 Section 3. General Repealer 

 Page  5  Ordinance No. 2025 - ______ 



 All laws, ordinances, resolutions, or parts of the same, which are inconsistent or in conflict with 
 the provisions of this ordinance, are hereby repealed to the extent of such inconsistency or 
 conflict. 

 Section 4. Severability 
 Should any title, section, paragraph, item, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance be 
 declared or adjudged invalid or unlawful by a court of competent jurisdiction, such declaration or 
 adjudication shall not affect the remaining portions of the ordinance which shall remain in full 
 force and effect as if the portion so declared or adjudged or unconstitutional was not originally 
 part of the ordinance. 

 PASSED AND APPROVED this ______ day of __________, 2025. 

 ___________________________________ 
 Mayor Chris Treat 

 ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 _________________________________  ___________________________________ 
 Mark Smith, City Clerk  Ashley Clancy, City Attorney 

 Page  6  Ordinance No. 2025 - ______ 



AGENDA ITEM HISTORY SHEET 
ITEM TITLE 
Ordinance 2025-11 Water Rates

AGENDA NO. 13

AGENDA DATE: 10/28/2025

FUNDING CERTIFICATION (Finance Director) (Signoture, if applicable) 

MANAGEMENT STAFF REVIEW (Signature) 

ITEM HISTORY (Previous Council reviews, action related to this item, and other pertinent history) 
The proposed rate study has been reviewed at WSAC regular & special meeting, planning 
commission, community engagement committee, and a meeting with business leaders. Ryan 
Bowman with Friday Firm along with staff have drafted/reviewed these ordinances. 

ITEM COMMENTARY (Background discussion, key points, recommendations, etc.) Please identify 
any or all impacts this proposed action would have on the City budget, personnel resources, and/or 
residents. 
This ordinance reflects the rates that were proposed in our recently completed 
Water/Wastewater Rate Study. The water rates are scheduled to Increase by 9% each year for 
the next 5 years. Act 605 requires a rate study to be completed by a third party every 5 years, 
and they require the implementation of full cost pricing meaning we must have rates that 
provide us with adequate revenue to continue operating the system at the current level of 
service as well as completing our Council adopted Water Capital Improvement Plan. Our last 
rate ordinance was passed in 2021 as Ordinance 2021-06. 

(This section to be completed by the Mayor) 

ACTION PROPOSED (Motion for Considercrtion) 
Complete a first reading of proposed ordinance in September, allow for public hearing to be 
held during October's Council meeting, and adopt the ordinance as proposed in October to 
ensure adequate time for Natural Resources Division to review/approve and proper budgeting 
to occur before rates go into effect January 1, 2026. 













GENOA ITEM HIS OR SHEE 
AGENDA NO. ITEM TITLE 

Ordinance 2025-12 Wastewater Rates AGENDA DATE: 10/28/2025

FUNDING CERTIFICATION (Finance Director) (Signature, if applicable) 

MANAGEMENT STAFF REVIEW (Signature) 

MAYOR {Signature) � 

L_:.- ---1�--
ITEM HISTORY {Previous Council reviews, action related to this item, and other pertinent history) 
The proposed rate study has been reviewed at WSAC regular & special meeting, planning 
commission, community engagement committee, and a meeting with business leaders. Ryan 
Bowman with Friday Firm along with staff have drafted/reviewed these ordinances. 

ITEM COMMENTARY (Background discussion, key points, recommendations, etc.) Please identify 
any or oil impacts this proposed action would have on the City budget, personnel resources, ond/or 
residents. 
This ordinance reflects the rates that were proposed in our recently completed 
Water/Wastewater Rate Study. The wasterwater rates are scheduled to increase by 6% for 3 
years followed by 2% the next 2 years. Act 925 requires the implementation of full cost pricing 
meaning we must have rates that provide us with adequate revenue to continue operating the 
system at the current level of service as well as completing our Council adopted Wastewater 
Capital Improvement Plan. Our last rate ordinance was passed in 2021 as Ordinance 2021-07. 
This ordinance also includes the Monthly Infrastructure Fee so fees/rates are easily tracl<able. 

(This section lo be completed I y 1he Moyor) 

ACTION PROPOSED (Motion for Consiclercrlion) 
Complete a first reading of proposed ordinance in September, allow for public hearing to be 
held during October's Council meeting, and adopt the ordinance as proposed in October to 
ensure adequate time for Natural I esources Division to review/approve and proper budgeting 
to occur before rates go into effect January 1, 2026. 

14

















 

RESOLUTION NO. ________ 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING AN ARTIFICIAL INTELLIGENCE POLICY FOR THE CITY 
OF BRYANT IN COMPLIANCE WITH ACT 848 OF 2025; AND FOR OTHER 

PURPOSES 

WHEREAS, Act 848 of 2025, enacted by the Arkansas General Assembly and codified 
at Ark. Code Ann. § 25-1-128 et. seq., requires all public entities, including 
municipalities, to adopt a policy concerning the authorized use of artificial intelligence 
(AI) and automated decision tools; and 

WHEREAS, the Act defines AI as a machine-based system that can, based on a given 
set of human-defined objectives, make predictions, recommendations, or decisions 
influencing real or virtual environments and it defines Automated Decision Tool as a 
system or service that uses AI and has been specifically developed and marketed, or 
specifically modified, to make or to be a controlling factor in making consequential 
decisions; and 

WHEREAS, the Act mandates that final decisions involving AI must be made by a 
human employee; and  

WHEREAS, Section (d) of Act 848 specifically prohibits the use of AI and automated 
decision tools by public employees; and 

WHEREAS, the Act further requires municipalities to provide employee training on the 
AI policy and to establish disciplinary procedures for violations of the policy; and 

WHEREAS, the Arkansas Municipal League has made training resources available to 
assist municipalities in complying with Act 848; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
________, ARKANSAS: 

Section 1. The City hereby adopts the attached Artificial Intelligence Policy, which 
defines the authorized use of AI and automated decision tools by city employees. 

Section 2. The policy requires that all consequential decisions involving AI tools must be 
reviewed and finalized by a human employee or authorized designee. 

Section 3. The policy includes a prohibition on the use of AI and automated decision 
tools for the following purposes, as required by Section (d) of Act 848 of 2025: 

● Expressing a personal political opinion to an elected official unless the opinion is 
within the scope of the employee’s regular job duties;  or requested by an elected 
official or public entity; or  

 



 

● Engaging in lobbying an elected official on a personal opinion if the employee is 
a not a registered lobbyist for the city; 

● Engaging in illegal activities or activities otherwise prohibited by federal law or 
state law; 

● Intentionally overriding or avoiding the cybersecurity or system integrity 
procedures of the City. 

Section 4. The City hereby adopts a disciplinary procedure for violations of the AI policy, 
which shall be incorporated into the City’s employee handbook and enforced 
accordingly. 

 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS ____ DAY OF ____________ 2025, BY THE CITY 
COUNCIL OF BRYANT, ARKANSAS.  

 

________________________ 
Attest:         Chris Treat, Mayor 
 
 
________________________ 
Mark Smith, City Clerk 
 

 



 

Artificial Intelligence Policy 

City of Bryant 

1. Purpose 

This policy establishes guidelines for the authorized and prohibited use of artificial intelligence 
(AI) and automated decision tools by employees and contractors of the City of Bryant 
(hereinafter the City), in compliance with Act 848 of 2025, the same being Ark. Code Ann. § 
25-1-128.   

 

2. Definitions 

● Artificial Intelligence (AI): A machine-based system that, based on human-defined 
objectives, can make predictions, recommendations, or decisions influencing real or 
virtual environments. 

● Automated Decision Tool: A system or service that uses AI and has been specifically 
developed and marketed, or specifically modified, to make or to be a controlling factor in 
making consequential decisions. 

● Employee: Any person employed by the City.  

 

3. Authorized Use 

● AI and automated decision tools may be used to enhance efficiency, accuracy, and service 
delivery in city operations. 

● All consequential decisions involving AI tools must be reviewed and finalized by a 
human employee or authorized designee. 

● AI tools must not be used to make autonomous decisions without human oversight. 

● Key Rules 

1. AI Is a Tool, Not a Finished Product  

● AI can help with writing, research, and ideas. 

● But people—not machines—must make all final decisions. 

2. Human Responsibility 

● Human Review: A person must always make the final decision, even when 
AI is used to assist. 

1 
 



 

● You must check all AI-generated content for accuracy. 

● You can’t use AI to replace your own judgment or creativity. 

3. Using AI for Research 

● You can use AI to help find sources or brainstorm. 

● But final work must be based on real, verified sources, not just AI summaries. 

4. AI-Generated Content 

● You can use AI to edit or summarize your own writing—but you must review 
it. 

● You can’t send out AI-written documents without checking them first. 

5. Grammar Tools Are OK 

● Tools like spell check or grammar fixers are allowed. 

6. Required Disclosures 

● If AI writes something from scratch (like a memo or letter), you must say so. 

o Example: “This document was drafted in part using an AI tool and 
may contain errors. Please review for accuracy.” 

● If AI just helps edit or summarize your own writing, no disclosure is 
needed—but you still have to review it. 

7. What You Can Do 

● Use AI to help with research, writing drafts, or editing. 

● Search engines like Google or Edge now show AI summaries at the top of a 
search —but you must always check the original sources and not rely on the 
summary.  

8. What You Can’t Do 

You can’t use AI to: 

● Make final decisions for the city 

● Write or send official documents without human review 

● Issue citations, permits, or enforcement actions 

● Make policy decisions or analyze data without checking it yourself 

● Handle hiring, firing, or private personal information 

2 
 



 

● Create anything related to race, gender, or other protected traits 

 

4. Prohibited Use 

In accordance with Section (d) of Act 848 of 2025, AI and automated decision tools shall not be 
used by city employees to: 

1. Express personal political opinions to elected officials unless within the scope of the 
employee’s job duties or upon request by an elected official or public entity; 

2. Engage in lobbying an elected official on a personal opinion if the employee is not a 
registered lobbyist for the city; 

3. Engage in illegal activities or activities otherwise prohibited by federal or state law;   

4. Intentionally override or avoid the security and system integrity procedures of the city.  

 

5. Protecting Personal Information 

Employees must never input Personally Identifiable Information (PII) into AI tools. This 
includes, but is not limited to: 

● Full names of individuals 

● Social Security numbers 

● Driver’s license or ID numbers 

● Home addresses or phone numbers 

● Email addresses 

● Medical or financial records 

● Employee or student ID numbers 

● Photos of individuals without consent 

 

6. Legal Rules 

● Don’t upload copyrighted material into AI tools. 

● Follow all laws, including HIPAA, if applicable, and other privacy rules. 

 

3 
 



 

7. Training 

● All employees are strongly encouraged to attend training on Act 848 and the proper use 
of AI prior to using AI on city business or equipment.  

● Training shall be provided through the Arkansas Municipal League’s ACE HUB’s AI 
Training or other approved sources. 

 

8. Disciplinary Action 

● Violations of this policy may result in disciplinary action, up to and including 
termination, in accordance with the City’s personnel policies and procedures. 

 

9. Acknowledgment 

I acknowledge that I have read and understood the Artificial Intelligence Policy. I agree to follow 
all rules, responsibilities, and guidelines outlined in the policy, including the appropriate and 
ethical use of artificial intelligence tools. I understand that violations of this policy and/or failure 
to comply with this policy may result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination.  

 

________________________________________               _____________________ 

Employee signature       Date 

 

 

4 
 



AGENDA ITEM HISTORY SHEET 
ITEM TITLE 

Request to submit a letter of intent to bid on 
RFP to Provide A in Services 

AGENDA NO.  16

AGENDA DATE: October 28, 2025 

FUNDING CERTIFICATION (Finance Director) (Signature, if applicable) 

MANAGEMENT STAFF RE 

�-
ITEM HISTORY (Previous Council reviews, action related to this item, and other pertinent history) 

Council Workshop on October 28 to discuss this item. 

ITEM COMMENTARY (Background discussion, key points, recommendations, etc.) Please identify 
any or all impacts this proposed action would have on the City budget, personnel resources, and/ or 
residents. 

Currently Carelink is managing daily operations for the Bryant Senior Adult Center and has 
issued an RFP to contract those services out. The Parks Department is requesting support to 
submit a letter of intent to bid on these services. Completing the LOI does not bind us to submit 
a bid, we would have until January 16 to decide whether to complete the RFP. 

(This section to be completed by the Mayor) 

ACTION PROPOSED (Motion for Consideration) 



AGENDA ITEM HISTORY SHEET 
ITEM TITLE AGENDA NO.   18
AlliConnect Contract Approval AGENDA DATE: 10-28-2025 

FUNDING CERTIFICATION (Finance Director) (Signature, if applicable) 

MANAGEMENT STAFF REVIEW (Signature) 

MAYOR (Signature) 

ITEM HISTORY (Previous Council reviews, action related to this item, and other pertinent history) 

AlliConnect is a software platform for first responder mental health that the Police Department 
has been utilizing for the past year in conjunction with our Officer Wellness Unit. The City 
Attorney has already reviewed and approved the contract wording. 

ITEM COMMENTARY (Background discussion, key points, recommendations, etc.) Please identify 
any or all impacts this proposed action would have on the City budget, personnel resources, and/ or 
residents. 

The PD would like Council approval for a five year contract with the vendor. Our first year was a 
reduced rate introductory price. We have signed an extension for the remainder of 2025. This 
contract would go into effect on 01-01-2026. This locks in our annual price for the next five 
years. This service allows our Officer Wellness team to conduct and monitor wellness 
check-in's on our employees. Analytics are also available to gauge departmental mental health 
responses. 24/7 on-call clinician support is included in the new contract. Annual training is also 
included. The increased price of the contract would be adjusted in our annual budgets for 
years 2026-2030 (001-0600-5604 ). Total contract price = $53,900 (see attached payment 
schedule) 

(This section to be completed by the Mayor) 

ACTION PROPOSED (Motion for Consideration) 

























AGENDA ITEM HISTORY SHEET

ITEM TITLE AGENDA NO.

AGENDA DATE:

FUNDING CERTIFICATION (Finance Director) (Signature, if applicable)

MANAGEMENT STAFF REVIEW (Signature)

MAYOR (Signature)

ITEM HISTORY (Previous Council reviews, action related to this item, and other pertinent history)

ITEM COMMENTARY (Background discussion, key points, recommendations, etc.) Please identify
any or all impacts this proposed action would have on the City budget, personnel resources, and/or
residents.

(This section to be completed by the Mayor)

ACTION PROPOSED (Motion for Consideration)

Sidewalk Waiver - Therapeds - 2208 N 
Reynolds

17

DRC 3/20/25 - Approved Site Plan, recommended half-street improvement waiver and plat to 
PC.  Planning Commission 3/24/25 - Approved Commercial Subdivision Plat and waiver on 
half-street improvement to not widen Dell Dr.  DRC - 10/2/25 - No recommendation given on 
waiver request for requirement to build sidewalk.  PC - 10/13/25 - No recommendation given. 

Ordinance 2017-31 states that construction of sidewalks shall be required at the time of 
issuance of a building permit or CO.  Any waiver from the requirements shall require approval of 
the City Council.  Waivers shall only be considered in instances where strict application of the 
requirements of this Section would be exceedingly impractical due to circumstances unique to 
the property such that construction of the required improvements is technically or physically 
infeasible.  
There are currently no sidewalks on Dell Dr from Reynolds Rd to the subject property. There is 
a large undeveloped lot immediately to the East of the property.  In 2021, the Modern Storage 
Development on the south side of Dell Dr received site plan approval and installed sidewalks as 
well as half-street improvements during their construction. 

10/28/2025

Motion to Approve



HOPE
CONSULTING

129 North Main Street, Benton, Arkansas 72015
(t) 501-315-2626 (e) www.HopeConsulting.com

September 24, 2025

Colton Leonard

City of Bryant

Planning and Development
210 SW 3rd.Street

Bryant, AR 72022

Subject: Sidewalk Waiver - Dell Drive, Bryant, AR 72022 (Parcel: 840-12643-000)

Dear Colton,

Hope Consulting is formally requesting staff review and approve the removal of the proposed sidewalk that is on

the South side of the property located on Dell Drive, Bryant, AR. We believe this sidewalk should be removed due

to the sidewalk that is already in place on the opposite side of the street. We would like to be included at the

October 13th Planning Commission Meeting.

Please feel free to contact me with any questions, concerns, or if I can be of any further assistance.

Sincerely,

Jonathan Hope

SURVEYORS | ENGINEERS PLANNERS

Since 1963



R/W DEDICATION
PER THIS PLAT

0.10 AC
4335.3 SF

25
' S

ET
BA

CK

25
' S

ET
BA

CK

15' SETBACK

15' SETBACK

25' SETBACK

15' SETBACK

LOT 2
2.21 AC

96276.2 SF

LOT 1
1.12 AC

48606.7 SF

20' UTILTY & DRAINAGE ESMT

30' U
TILTY & D

RAIN
AGE ESM

T

10' UTILTY & DRAINAGE ESMT

10' UTILTY & DRAINAGE ESMT
10' UTILTY & DRAINAGE ESMT

10
' U

TI
LT

Y 
& 

D
RA

IN
AG

E 
ES

M
T

RE
YN

O
LD

S 
RO

AD
/A

RK
. H

W
Y.

 18
3

(M
IN

O
R 

AR
TE

RI
AL

 C
LA

SS
,

80
' R

/W
 P

ER
 M

.S
.P

.)

DELL DRIVE
(COLLECTOR CLASS, 60' R/W

PER M.S.P.)

17
.4

'

30
.0

'30
.0

'

52.2'

52.0'

N00°46'47"W 4.42'
S88°32'04"E 460.39'

N02°31'33"E 26.58'

S88°33'50"E 62.85'

N
02

°3
2'0

3"
E 

50
1.5

0'

840-12643-000

UNITED TRADERS INC

840-12644-004

PARTNERS PROVISION

TRUST I J&S ERWIN JR

TRUSTEES

840-12644-000

ARC CAFEHLDOOL LLC

840-12644-001

SHIV MARUTI INC

840-12644-005

PARTNERS PROVISION

TRUST I J&S ERWIN JR

TRUSTEES

840-12643-002

MCDONALD'S REAL ESTATE

COMPANY

840-12641-003

LOWE'S HOME CENTERS INC

POINT OF BEGINNING (LOT 2)

FND. 1/2" REBAR (PS 1141)

FND. 1/2" REBAR (PS 1506),
POINT OF BEGINNING (LOT 1)

FND. 1/2" REBAR

FND. COTTON
SPINDLE IN ASPHALT

FND. 1/2" REBAR (PS 1506),
POINT OF BEGINNING (OVERALL

BOUNDARY & R/W DED.)

FND. 1/2" REBAR (PS 154)

FND. 1/2" REBAR (PS 154)

10' UTILTY & DRAINAGE ESMT

S88°33'59"E 502.86'
N02°33'00"E 60.14'

N88°30'12"W 458.94'

N88°28'15"W 334.86'

S0
2°

52
'36

"W
 19

2.
33

'

S88°29'45"E 270.00'

S32°32'44"E 58.25'

N88°36'41"W 333.95'

S02°52'36"W 12.56'S88°28'15"E 334.86'
N01°05'50"W 13.39'

S0
2°

52
'36

"W
 14

9.
43

'

S02°52'36"W 8.84'

S86°59'17"E 306.13'

N
01

°4
1'3

0"
E 

118
.0

2'

N88°29'45"W 270.00'

N
01°05'50"W

 179.88'

EXISTING INGRESS/ EGRESS EASEMENT
(#2000-03033)

EXISTING INGRESS/ EGRESS
EASEMENT (#2005-11645)

EXISTING INGRESS/ EGRESS
EASEMENT PER DOC. #2005-11645

5' 
SI

D
E 

SE
TB

AC
K 

(F
RO

M
 E

SM
T)

5' 
SI

D
E 

SE
TB

AC
K 

(F
RO

M
 E

SM
T)

LOWE'S HOME CENTER

SUPER 8

PR
O

M
O

TI
O

N
AL

ID
EA

S!

SUPER 8

WENDY'S

MCDONALD'S

20' SEWER ESMT LAYING TEN FEET ON EITHER SIDE OF MAIN

10.0'

POINT OF COMMENCEMENT
SW CORNER,
SW1/4, SW1/4,
SEC. 22, T-1-S, R-14-W

K:
\L

an
d 

Pr
oj

ec
ts

 2
00

4\
Su

rv
ey

s\
20

24
\2

4-
13

51
 S

ite
 P

la
n 

D
el

l S
t, 

Br
ya

nt
, A

R\
SU

RV
EY

\D
W

G\
24

-13
51

 L
ot

s 1
 &

 2
 o

f D
un

lo
p 

Co
m

m
er

ci
al

 S
ub

di
vi

sio
n 

(D
el

l S
tr

ee
t, 

Br
ya

nt
) R

1.d
w

g
 | 

Pl
ot

te
d:

 3/
24

/2
02

5 
11:

24
 A

M | 
©2

02
4 

H
op

e 
Co

ns
ul

tin
g,

 In
c.

N
BA

SI
S 

O
F 

BE
AR

IN
GS

:
GR

ID
 N

O
RT

H
, A

RK
 S

PC
S

(N
AD

83
), 

SO
U

TH
 Z

O
N

E 
(0

30
2)

SCALE: 1" = 50'

25' 100'50'0

www.HopeConsulting.com

AR STATE LAND SURVEY FILING CODE: -------

R SOYVU ERSSREENIGNE

FOR USE AND BENEFIT OF:

OF

1 2 9  N o r t h  M a i n  S t r e e t
B e n t o n ,  A r k a n s a s  7 2 0 1 5
Of f ice: (501) 315-2626 | Fax: (501) 315-0024

SHEET:

0500

PROJECT NUMBER:

SCALE:
CHECKED BY:
CAD BY:DATE:

REVISED: 24-1351

R & M DUNLAP PROPERTIES, LLC
FIRST NATIONAL TITLE COMPANY

FIRST AMERICAN TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY

 PLAT OF
LOTS 1 & 2 OF DUNLAP

COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT,
A COMMERCIAL SUBDIVISION

IN THE CITY OF BRYANT,
SALINE COUNTY, ARKANSAS

1/15/2025

1" = 60'

OV
WCS3/24/2025

01S 14W 22 330 62 1664

1 1

FLOOD ZONE INFORMATION

      PORTION OF THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON LIES WITHIN A SPECIAL
FLOOD HAZARD AREA, ACCORDING TO THE FEMA FLOOD INSURANCE RATE
MAP LISTED BELOW:
PANEL # _______________, DATED: _______________ .

NO

05125C0380E 06/05/2020

SURVEY DETAILS AND NOTES
OWNER OF RECORD: UNITED TRADERS INC
PHYSICAL ADDRESS: DELL DRIVE, BRYANT, ARKANSAS
COUNTY PARCEL TAX ID: 840-12643-000

ALL DIMENSIONS LISTED ARE AS MEASURED BY THIS SURVEYOR UNLESS
OTHERWISE NOTED. FOR RECORD DIMENSIONS SEE DOCUMENTS OF RECORD.

OWNERSHIP INFORMATION, IF SHOWN, IS LISTED AS PUBLISHED BY THE
LOCAL COUNTY TAX ASSESSOR AND IS LISTED FOR REFERENCE ONLY.  NO
STATEMENTS OF OWNERSHIP, RIGHTS, OR INTERESTS ARE MADE.

REFERENCE PLATS & MAPS
RECORDED SURVEY PLATS BY:
1. NEAL WAGNER (PS 154), FOR PILOT CORPORATION, AND DATED 6/1999
2. DOUG SHAMBARGER (PS 1388), FOR REYNOLDS ROAD DEVELOPMENT, AND

DATED 1/14/2004
3. DOUG SHAMBARGER (PS 1388), FOR REYNOLDS ROAD DEVELOPMENT, AND

DATED 11/26/2004
3. BEN KITTLER, JR (PS 568), FOR REYNOLDS ROAD DEVELOPMENT, AND DATED

3/29/2006

PROPERTY DESCRIPTIONS FROM SURVEY - LOT 1
A PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (SW1/4) OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (SW1/4) OF SECTION 22,
TOWNSHIP 1 SOUTH, RANGE 14 WEST, CITY OF BRYANT, SALINE COUNTY, ARKANSAS MORE
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:
COMMENCING AT THE SW CORNER OF SAID SW1/4, SW1/4 OF SECTION 22;
THENCE NORTH 02°32'03" EAST A DISTANCE OF 501.50 FEET TO A POINT;
THENCE SOUTH 88°33'50" EAST, CROSSING REYNOLDS ROAD (ALSO KNOWN AS ARKANSAS STATE
HIGHWAY NUMBER 183) A DISTANCE OF 62.85 FEET TO A POINT ON THE FORMER EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY
OF SAID REYNOLDS ROAD;
THENCE NORTH 02°31'33" EAST A DISTANCE OF 26.58 FEET TO A POINT;
THENCE SOUTH 88°32'04" EAST A DISTANCE OF 460.39 FEET TO A POINT;
THENCE NORTH 00°46'47" WEST A DISTANCE OF 4.42 FEET TO A FND. 5/8” REBAR & CAP (PS 1506);
THENCE NORTH 01°05'50" WEST A DISTANCE OF 13.39 FEET TO A SET 1/2" REBAR & CAP (PS 1664) ON THE
CURRENT NORTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY OF DELL DRIVE (SAID R/W BEING 30 FEET, MORE OR LESS, TO
THE CENTERLINE THEREOF);
THENCE NORTH 01°05'50" WEST A DISTANCE OF 179.88 FEET TO A FND. 1/2” REBAR & CAP (PS 1141);
THENCE NORTH 88°30'12" WEST A DISTANCE OF 458.94 FEET TO A FND. 1/2” REBAR & CAP (PS 164);
THENCE NORTH 02°33'00" EAST A DISTANCE OF 60.14 FEET TO A FND. 1/2” REBAR & CAP (PS 164);
THENCE SOUTH 88°33'59" EAST A DISTANCE OF 502.86 FEET TO A FND. 5/8” REBAR & CAP (PS 1506) AND
THE POINT OF BEGINNING;
THENCE NORTH 01°41'30" EAST A DISTANCE OF 118.02 FEET TO A 1/2” REBAR;
THENCE SOUTH 86°59'17" EAST A DISTANCE OF 306.13 FEET TO A FND. COTTON SPINDLE IN ASPHALT;
THENCE SOUTH 02°52'36" WEST A DISTANCE OF 8.84 FEET TO A SET MAG NAIL (PS 1664) IN ASPHALT;
THENCE CONTINUE SOUTH 02°52'36" WEST A DISTANCE OF 149.43 FEET TO A SET MAG NAIL (PS 1664) IN
ASPHALT;
THENCE NORTH 88°29'45" WEST A DISTANCE OF 270.00 FEET TO A POINT;
THENCE NORTH 32°32'44" WEST A DISTANCE OF 58.25 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING;
CONTAINING 48,606.71 SQUARE FEET, OR 1.12 ACRES, MORE OR LESS.

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION FROM SURVEY - LOT 2
A PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (SW1/4) OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (SW1/4) OF
SECTION 22, TOWNSHIP 1 SOUTH, RANGE 14 WEST, CITY OF BRYANT, SALINE COUNTY, ARKANSAS
MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:
COMMENCING AT THE SW CORNER OF SAID SW1/4, SW1/4 OF SECTION 22;
THENCE NORTH 02°32'03" EAST A DISTANCE OF 501.50 FEET TO A POINT;
THENCE SOUTH 88°33'50" EAST, CROSSING REYNOLDS ROAD (ALSO KNOWN AS ARKANSAS STATE
HIGHWAY NUMBER 183) A DISTANCE OF 62.85 FEET TO A POINT ON THE FORMER EAST
RIGHT-OF-WAY OF SAID REYNOLDS ROAD;
THENCE NORTH 02°31'33" EAST A DISTANCE OF 26.58 FEET TO A POINT;
THENCE SOUTH 88°32'04" EAST A DISTANCE OF 460.39 FEET TO A POINT;
THENCE NORTH 00°46'47" WEST A DISTANCE OF 4.42 FEET TO A FND. 5/8” REBAR & CAP (PS 1506);
THENCE NORTH 01°05'50" WEST A DISTANCE OF 13.39 FEET TO A SET 1/2" REBAR & CAP (PS 1664) ON
THE CURRENT NORTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY OF DELL DRIVE (SAID R/W BEING 30 FEET, MORE OR
LESS, TO THE CENTERLINE THEREOF) AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING;
THENCE NORTH 01°05'50" WEST A DISTANCE OF 179.88 FEET TO A FND. 1/2” REBAR & CAP (PS 1141);
THENCE NORTH 88°30'12" WEST A DISTANCE OF 458.94 FEET TO A FND. 1/2” REBAR & CAP (PS 164);
THENCE NORTH 02°33'00" EAST A DISTANCE OF 60.14 FEET TO A FND. 1/2” REBAR & CAP (PS 164);
THENCE SOUTH 88°33'59" EAST A DISTANCE OF 502.86 FEET TO A FND. 5/8” REBAR & CAP (PS 1506);
THENCE SOUTH 32°32'44" EAST A DISTANCE OF 58.25 FEET TO A 1/2” REBAR & CAP (PS 1664);
THENCE SOUTH 88°29'45" EAST A DISTANCE OF 270.00 FEET TO A SET MAG NAIL (PS 1664) IN
ASPHALT;
THENCE SOUTH 02°52'36" WEST A DISTANCE OF 192.33 FEET TO A SET MAG NAIL (PS 1664) IN
ASPHALT ON SAID NORTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY OF DELL DRIVE;
THENCE NORTH 88°28'15" WEST A DISTANCE OF 334.86 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING;
CONTAINING 96,276.22 SQUARE FEET, OR 2.21 ACRES, MORE OR LESS.

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION FROM SURVEY- ROW DEDICATION
A PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (SW1/4) OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (SW1/4) OF SECTION
22, TOWNSHIP 1 SOUTH, RANGE 14 WEST, CITY OF BRYANT, SALINE COUNTY, ARKANSAS MORE
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:
COMMENCING AT THE SW CORNER OF SAID SW1/4, SW1/4 OF SECTION 22;
THENCE NORTH 02°32'03" EAST A DISTANCE OF 501.50 FEET TO A POINT;
THENCE SOUTH 88°33'50" EAST, CROSSING REYNOLDS ROAD (ALSO KNOWN AS ARKANSAS STATE
HIGHWAY NUMBER 183) A DISTANCE OF 62.85 FEET TO A POINT ON THE FORMER EAST
RIGHT-OF-WAY OF SAID REYNOLDS ROAD;
THENCE NORTH 02°31'33" EAST A DISTANCE OF 26.58 FEET TO A POINT;
THENCE SOUTH 88°32'04" EAST A DISTANCE OF 460.39 FEET TO A POINT;
THENCE NORTH 00°46'47" WEST A DISTANCE OF 4.42 FEET TO A FND. 5/8” REBAR & CAP (PS 1506) AND
THE POINT OF BEGINNING;
THENCE NORTH 01°05'50" WEST A DISTANCE OF 13.39 FEET TO A SET 1/2" REBAR & CAP (PS 1664);
THENCE SOUTH 88°28'15" EAST A DISTANCE OF 334.86 FEET TO A SET MAG NAIL (PS 1664) IN ASPHALT;
THENCE SOUTH 02°52'36" WEST A DISTANCE OF 12.56 FEET TO A SET MAG NAIL (PS 1664) IN ASPHALT;
THENCE NORTH 88°36'41" WEST A DISTANCE OF 333.95 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING;
CONTAINING 4,335.26 SQUARE FEET, OR 0.10 ACRES, MORE OR LESS.

Agreement

Way Dedication
- Public Right-of-

- Existing Access 

- Gas MeterB.S.L.  -  Building Setback Lines
ESMT  -  Easement

- Electric Line
- Gas Line

- Telephone Line
- Water Line
- Sewer Line

- Drainage Manhole

- Fence- Clean Out
- Overhead Power

- Power Pole

- Telephone Pedestal
- Light Pole
- Sewer Manhole

- Water Meter

(P)
(M)

- PLSS Aliquot Corner

- Per Deed or Plat Records
- As Measured

- Set 1/2" Rebar/Cap (1664) 
- Computed Point

- Fnd. Corner Monument

LEGEND

EXISTING ENCUMBRANCES OF RECORD*:

1. MISC. BOOK 59, PAGE 290, TELEPHONE UTILITY EASEMENT, DATED 7/24/1979
(SHOWN ON PLAT BY SHAMBARGER)

2. DOC. #2000-03033, INGRESS AND EGRESS EASEMENT TO MCDONALD'S CORP.
(SHOWN ON PLAT BY SHAMBARGER)

3. DOC. #2005-116451, EASEMENTS, COVENANTS, CONDITIONS, AND
RESTRICTIONS

4. DOC. #2007-019196, FIRST AMENDMENT TO EASEMENTS, COVENANTS,
CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS

5. DOC. #2008-015986, NOTICE OF DEED RESTRICTION (MITIGATION EASEMENT)

*THIS SURVEY IS BASED ON PUBLIC RECORDS FURNISHED BY THIRD PARTIES. NO INDEPENDENT SEARCH OR
INVESTIGATION HAS BEEN MADE BY THIS FIRM FOR ANY RECORDS, PUBLIC OR PRIVATE. LISTED REFERENCE
DOCUMENTS HEREON WERE USED AND CONSIDERED AS A PART OF THIS SURVEY; HOWEVER OTHER
RECORDS, IF ANY, COULD FURTHER AFFECT THIS SURVEY.  NO STATEMENT OR GUARANTEES OF
OWNERSHIP, RIGHTS, RESTRICTIONS, OR OTHER ENCUMBRANCES OR INTERESTS ARE MADE BY THIS SURVEY
PLAT.

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION OF RECORD
SALINE COUNTY DEED 2018-024633

ALL THAT PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 22, TOWNSHIP 1 SOUTH, RANGE 14 WEST,
CITY OF BRYANT, SALINE COUNTY, ARKANSAS, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:
COMMENCING AT AN ARKANSAS GEOLOGICAL MONUMENT MARKING THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF
SAID SECTION 22; THENCE NORTH 02 DEGREES 32 MINUTES 00 SECONDS EAST, ALONG THE WEST LINE
THEREOF, 501.52 FEET; TO A POINT; THENCE SOUTH 88 DEGREES 33 MINUTES 53 SECONDS EAST,
CROSSING REYNOLDS ROAD (ALSO KNOWN AS ARKANSAS STATE HIGHWAY NUMBER 183) FOR 62.85
FEET TO THE EAST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF REYNOLDS ROAD AND THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF DELL
DRIVE; THENCE NORTH 02 DEGREES 31 MINUTES 30 SECONDS EAST, ALONG SAID REYNOLDS ROAD
R-O-W, 26.58 FEET TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF DELL DRIVE; THENCE SOUTH 88 DEGREES 32
MINUTES 07 SECONDS EAST, ALONG DELL DRIVE R-O-W, 460.41 FEET TO A TWO INCH PIPE; THENCE
NORTH 00 DEGREES 46 MINUTES 50 SECONDS WEST, 4.42 FEET TO A 5/8 INCH REBAR AND THE POINT OF
BEGINNING; THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 46 MINUTES 50 SECONDS WEST, 193.64 FEET TO A 5/8 INCH
REBAR; THENCE NORTH 88 DEGREES 33 MINUTES 43 SECONDS WEST, 459.80 FEET TO A 5/8 INCH REBAR
IN THE EAST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF ARKANSAS STATE HIGHWAY NO. 183; THENCE NORTH 02 DEGREES
34 MINUTES 12 SECONDS EAST, ALONG SAID HIGHWAY R-O-W, 60.18 FEET TO A 5/8 INCH REBAR; THENCE
SOUTH 88 DEGREES 34 MINUTES 10 SECONDS EAST, LEAVING SAID HIGHWAY, 502.98 FEET TO A 5/8 INCH
REBAR; THENCE NORTH 01 DEGREES 38 MINUTES 53 SECONDS EAST, 118.02 FEET TO A 5/8 INCH REBAR
AND THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF LAND OF LOWES; THENCE SOUTH 87 DEGREES 05 MINUTES 10
SECONDS EAST, ALONG A LINE COMMON WITH THE LAND OF LOWES, 305.54 FEET TO A 5/8 INCH
REBAR; THENCE SOUTH 02 DEGREES 54 MINUTES 50 SECONDS WEST, ALONG A LINE COMMON WITH
THE LAND OF LOWES, 8.84 FEET TO A 5/8 INCH REBAR; THENCE SOUTH 87 DEGREES 05 MINUTES 10
SECONDS EAST, ALONG A LINE COMMON WITH THE LAND OF LOWES, 477.06 FEET TO A 5/8 INCH REBAR
AND THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LAND OF LOWES; THENCE SOUTH 02 DEGREES 34 MINUTES 53
SECONDS WEST, ALONG A LINE COMMON WITH THE WEST LINE OF PIKEWOOD SUBDIVISION NUMBER
2, AS FILED IN DEED BOOK 109 AT PAGE 314 FOR 342.19 FEET TO A 5/8 INCH REBAR, SAID REBAR IS
LOCATED NORTH 02 DEGREES 34 MINUTES 48 SECONDS EAST, 4.12 FEET FROM A 1/2 INCH REBAR WITH A
BEN KITTLER, JR. CAP, MARKING THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF RAYMOND EVANS LAND AS SHOWN IN
DEED BOOK 189, PAGE 22; THENCE NORTH 88 DEGREES 36 MINUTES 25 SECONDS WEST, ALONG THE
NORTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF DELL DRIVE, 812.58 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

CURRENT ZONING DETAILS
ZONING: C-2 HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL DISTRICT

BUILDING SETBACK RESTRICTIONS PER THIS PLAT
FRONT YARD: 15 FEET
SIDE YARD: 15 SHOWN
REAR YARD: 25 FEET

CERTIFICATE OF FINAL SURVEYING ACCURACY:

ARKAN SA S

HOPE
CONSULTING,

INC.
No. 1931

CER
T I F

ICATE  OF  AUTHOR IZATI ON

We, the undersigned, owners of the real estate shown and described herein do hereby
certify that we have caused to be laid off, platted and subdivided, and to hereby lay off, plat
and subdivide said real estate in accordance with the plat.

Source of Title: SALINE COUNTY DEED #2018-024633

CERTIFICATE OF OWNER:
I, William Corbitt R. Shoffner, hereby certify that this plat correctly represents a survey and
a plan made by me or under my supervision; that all monuments shown hereon actually
exist and their location, size, type and material are correctly shown; and that all interior lot
lines have been adjusted to "as built conditions" and are accurately described on the plat and
identified on the ground in terms of length and direction of the property sides.

William Corbitt R. Shoffner
Registered Professional
Land Surveyor No. 1664 Arkansas

Pursuant to the City of Bryant Subdivision Rules and Regulations, this document was given
approval by the Bryant Planning Commission at a meeting held _________________, 20_______.
All Documents are hereby accepted, and this certificate is hereby executed under the authority
of said rules and regulations.

CERTIFICATE OF FINAL PLAT APPROVAL:

Lance Penfield
Bryant Planning Commission Chairperson

Date of Execution:                                             Name:

W
I L L I AM  COR B I T T  R .  SHOF FN

ER

PR
O

FE
SSIONAL  LAND  SUR

V
E

Y
O

R

SIGNATURE

No. 1664

STATE OF
ARKANSAS

DEREGI STER

Date of Execution

Date of Execution

VICINITY MAP

PROJECT
LOCATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
GM

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
C/O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T



6

8

7 7
6

9

9

11
8

8

D
RI

V
E

 T
H

U
R

9

9 6

PROPOSED
BUILDING #1
9,960 SQ. FT.

6

PROPOSED
BUILDING #2
7,507 SQ. FT.

5

REYNOLDS ROAD
SITE SIGN

25
' S

ET
BA

CK

25
' S

ET
BA

CK

15' SETBACK

15' SETBACK

15' SETBACK

15' SETBACK

10' UTILTY & DRAINAGE ESMT

30' U
TILTY & D

RAIN
AGE ESM

T

10' UTILTY & DRAINAGE ESMT

10' UTILTY & DRAINAGE ESMT
10' UTILTY & DRAINAGE ESMT

10
' U

TI
LT

Y 
& 

D
RA

IN
AG

E 
ES

M
T

RE
YN

O
LD

S 
RO

AD
/A

RK
. H

W
Y.

 18
3

(M
IN

O
R 

AR
TE

RI
AL

 C
LA

SS
,

80
' R

/W
 P

ER
 M

.S
.P

.)

DELL DRIVE
(COLLECTOR CLASS, 60' R/W

PER M.S.P.)

840-12643-000

UNITED TRADERS INC

840-12644-004

PARTNERS PROVISION

TRUST I J&S ERWIN JR

TRUSTEES

840-12644-000

ARC CAFEHLDOOL LLC

840-12644-001

SHIV MARUTI INC

840-12644-005

PARTNERS PROVISION

TRUST I J&S ERWIN JR

TRUSTEES

840-12643-002

MCDONALD'S REAL ESTATE

COMPANY

POINT OF BEGINNING (LOT 2)

FND. 1/2" REBAR (PS 1141)

FND. 1/2" REBAR (PS 1506),
POINT OF BEGINNING (LOT 1)

FND. 1/2" REBAR

FND. COTTON
SPINDLE IN ASPHALT

FND. 1/2" REBAR (PS 1506),
POINT OF BEGINNING (OVERALL

BOUNDARY & R/W DED.)

FND. 1/2" REBAR (PS 154)

FND. 1/2" REBAR (PS 154)

10' UTILTY & DRAINAGE ESMT

S88°33'59"E 502.86'
N02°33'00"E 60.14'

N88°30'12"W 458.94'

N88°28'15"W 334.86'

S0
2°

52
'36

"W
 19

2.
33

'

S88°29'45"E 270.00'

S32°32'44"E 58.25'

N88°36'41"W 333.95'

S02°52'36"W 12.56'
S88°28'15"E 334.86'

N01°05'50"W 13.39'

S0
2°

52
'36

"W
 14

9.
43

'

S02°52'36"W 8.84'

S86°59'17"E 306.13'

N
01

°4
1'3

0"
E 

118
.0

2'

N88°29'45"W 270.00'

N
01°05'50"W

 179.88'

EXISTING INGRESS/ EGRESS EASEMENT
(#2000-03033)

EXISTING INGRESS/ EGRESS
EASEMENT (#2005-11645)

EXISTING INGRESS/ EGRESS
EASEMENT PER DOC. #2005-11645

5' 
SI

D
E 

SE
TB

AC
K 

(F
RO

M
 E

SM
T)

5' 
SI

D
E 

SE
TB

AC
K 

(F
RO

M
 E

SM
T)

LOWE'S HOME CENTER

SUPER 8

PR
O

M
O

TI
O

N
AL

ID
EA

S!

SUPER 8

WENDY'S

MCDONALD'S

20' SEWER ESMT LAYING TEN FEET ON EITHER SIDE OF MAIN

10.0'

20'20'

20' 20'

20
'

24'

24'

20'

24'

24
'

20
'

24
'

28
'

20
'

20
'

24
'

20
'

24'

19
'

22
'

20'

15
'

8'

5'

5'

24'

28'

10'

6'

11
'

24'

A
D

A
 RA

M
P

ADA RAMP

ADA RAMP

MOUNTABLE
CURB

MOUNTABLE
CURB

ROLL OUT
GARAGE

CANS AREA

ROLL OUT
GARAGE

CANS AREA

NO PARKING SIGN

NO PARKING SIGN

NO PARKING SIGN

NO PARKING SIGN

FOR USE AND BENEFIT OF:

129 N. Main Street,
Benton, Arkansas 72015
PH.  (501)315-2626
FAX (501) 315-0024
www.hopeconsulting.com

 C.A.D. BY: DRAWING NUMBER:DATE:

SHEET:

REVISED: A
:\

H
O

PE
 C

O
N

SU
LT

IN
G

\9
. P

RO
JE

CT
S\

11
. 2

4-
13

51
 D

E
LL

 D
RI

V
E

 - 
PH

IL
LI

P 
RY

E
\C

IV
IL

\D
W

G
\2

4-
13

51
-0

3-
12

-2
02

5.
D

W
G

 CHECKED BY:

 SCALE:

DELL STREET, BRYANT, SALINE COUNTY, ARKANSAS

MEDICAL PLAZA
R & M DUNLAP PROPERTIES, LLC

24-1351
C-1.0

SITE PLAN

03-19-2025

CE
RT

I F
IC

ATE  OF  AUTHOR I ZAT
I ON

No. 1931

HOPE
CONSULTING,

INC.

A
RKAN SAS

ASPHALT PAVEMENT SECTION
NOT TO SCALE

7" AGGREGATE BASE
COURSE CLASS 7

2" ACHM SURFACE
COURSE

ZONING INFORMATION
CURRENT ZONING

MINIMUM LOT WIDTH (FT)
FRONT YARD SETBACK (FT)

MAXIMUM BUILDING COVERAGE (SF)

N/A

50'

15'

17,707

SITE DATA
TOTAL SITE AREA

GROSS BUILDING AREA

TOTAL DEVELOPMENT AREA

BUILDING SETBACKS
FRONT SETBACK LINE:50'
SIDE SETBACK LINE: AS SHOWN
REAR SETBACK LINE: 15'
FRONT LANDSCAPE BUFFER: 10'

BUILDING HEIGHTS 1 STORY

     BUILDING #1  9,600 SQ. FT.
BUILDING #2             7,507 SQ. FT.

      TOTAL           16,107 SQ. FT.

3.33 ACRES

BUSINESS TYPE HEALTH CARE

PARKING CALCULATION
(PROVIDED)

SIDE YARD SETBACK (FT)

113 PARKING SPACES PROVIDED
(6 ADA SPACES)

AS SHOWN
REAR YARD SETBACK (FT)

HANDICAP SIGN WITH
INTERNATIONAL

SYMBOL

9'
(TYP)

20
'

CONC. SIDEWALK
WITH INTEGRAL CURB

20
'

9' 5' 9'

CONCRETE
SIDEWALK 6.0'

10' FOR
END
STALLSPARKING STALL & SIDEWALK DETAIL

NOT TO
SCALE

6.0'
1.0'1.0'

INSTALL TYPE 5 RAMP
(SEE DETAIL)

3.33 ACRES

R & M DUNLAP PROPERTIES, LLC R & M DUNLAP PROPERTIES, LLC
OWNER:

Name:

Address:

DEVELOPER:

Name:
Address:

Phone:

HEAVY DUTY CONCRETE PAVEMENT
SECTION
NOT TO SCALE

6"

6"

COMPACTED
SUBGRADE
(MIN CBR 6)

PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE
(MIN STRENGTH=4000 PSI)

AGGREGATE BASE
(CLASS 7)

6"
6"

VICINITY MAP:

BA
SI

S 
O

F 
BE

A
RI

N
G

:
G

RI
D

 N
O

RT
H

, A
RK

A
N

SA
S

CO
O

RD
IN

A
TE

 S
Y

ST
E

M
, S

O
U

TH
 Z

O
N

E
BY

 G
PS

 O
BS

E
RV

A
TI

O
N

PROJECT
LOCATION

Agreement

Way Dedication
- Public Right-of-

- Existing Access 

- Gas MeterB.S.L.  -  Building Setback Lines
ESMT  -  Easement

- Electric Line
- Gas Line

- Telephone Line
- Water Line
- Sewer Line

- Drainage Manhole

- Fence- Clean Out
- Overhead Power

- Power Pole

- Telephone Pedestal
- Light Pole
- Sewer Manhole

- Water Meter

(P)
(M)

- PLSS Aliquot Corner

- Per Deed or Plat Records
- As Measured

- Set 1/2" Rebar/Cap (1664) 
- Computed Point

- Fnd. Corner Monument

LEGEND

C-2 HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL
DISTRICT

Email:

Phone:

Email:

PROPOSE CURVE CUT

PROPOSE CURVE CUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
USE DIMENSIONS ABOVE UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
GM

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
C/O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T



. 0 130 260 390 52065

ft

cleonard
Line

cleonard
Line

cleonard
Text Box
Subject Property Requesting Waiver

cleonard
Line

cleonard
Line

cleonard
Line

cleonard
Line

cleonard
Text Box
  
               Existing Sidewalks  

               No Sidewalks - Developed   
               Property

               No Sidewalks - Undeveloped                 Property

               Requested Waiver

cleonard
Line

cleonard
Line

cleonard
Line

cleonard
Line

cleonard
Line

cleonard
Architect
Dell Drive

cleonard
Architect
Reynolds Road

cleonard
Architect
Evans Loop


	Invocation
	Pledge of Allegiance
	Call to Order
	Approval of Minutes
	Presentations and Announcements
	Public Comments
	Old Business
	Council

	New Business
	Finance
	Animal Control
	City Attorney
	Parks and Recreation
	Planning & Development
	Police Department

	Council Comments
	Mayor Comments
	Adjournments
	ORDINANCE NO. 2025-_____ 
	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF BRYANT, ARKANSAS 
	​​(g)​The City covenants that it will not reimburse itself from proceeds of the bond for any costs paid prior to the date the bond is issued except in compliance with United States Treasury Regulation §1.150-2 (the "Regulation").  Resolution No. 2025-04, adopted February 13, 2025, shall constitute an "official intent" for purposes of the Regulation. 
	DOC102225-10222025155728
	AC Fee Schedule Proposed Ordinance
	Ordinance 2025-13 AI.docx.pdf
	AI Policy in compliance with Act 848.docx.pdf

